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Forward Looking Statements

Statements in this Annual Report that are not strictly historical in nature are forward-looking statements. These
statements include, but are not limited to, references to the expected impact of new products on our ASPs; the
anticipated growth in the installed base of Cymer light sources; chipmakers’ use of two DUV wavelengths in the
next upturn; estimates that the total available market for Cymer may exceed $1 billion; the benefits of having a
commonality of platform in new products; anticipated investment in R&D; the anticipated impact of future
improvement in our business processes; expectations regarding new technologies and products; future
development of non-light source products; the potential application of the ACX technology; and the anticipated
results of our joint development efforts. These statements are only predictions based on current information and
involve a number of risks and uncertainties. Actual events may differ materially from those projected in such
statements due to various factors, including, but not limited to, those set forth under the captions “Business,”
“Risk Factors,” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”
in the annual report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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About Cymer

Cymer is the world’s leading supplier of light source solutions for the semiconductor industry. The company’s
products provide the essential light source for deep ultraviolet (DUV) photolithography systems.

Virtually every consumer electronic device manufactured in the last several years — whether a PC or laptop, cellular
phone, pager, pda device, internet server, modem, appliance or automobile — contains a semiconductor
manufactured using a Cymer light-source. Today's advanced devices require smaller, faster chips with increased
power and functionality, and the chipmakers turn to Cymer to provide the light source critical for patterning these
chips.

The company currently supplies light sources to all three DUV photolithography system manufacturers who in turn
supply their wafer steppers and scanners to chipmakers. More than 65 chipmakers around the world use Cymer
light sources in production. With a worldwide installed base exceeding 1,700 systems, Cymer supports its
customers through its more than 52 locations around the globe, providing them with spare parts, technical help and
training.

Cymer was the first company to have light sources at four wavelengths--248 nm, 193 nm, 157 nm and 13.5 nm,
and the company’s strong intellectual property position includes 136 patents issued in the United States, with
another 98 US patents pending, and 110 foreign patents issued with 281 foreign patents applied for.




TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS:

The year 2001 was challenging, certainly from a
business perspective, but also from a personal
perspective, as we at Cymer dealt with the initial
shock and outrage caused by the September 11"
attack. Along with our fellow Americans and most
people throughout the world, we mourn the loss of so
many lives and sympathize with the victims’ families.
In the attack’s aftermath, we know that all of our lives
have been changed permanently by this tragedy. In
addition to the personal suffering it caused, the
September 11" attack had a negative impact on an
already faltering business environment, creating
additional uncertainty about the economic outlook for
consumers and businesses alike.

The semiconductor industry, however, experienced
an abrupt contraction beginning early in 2001. The
year 2001 — originally expected to be a year of
growth that would build on the industry’s strongest
year ever in 2000 — transformed itself into a year of
rapid decline that became the steepest and longest
downturn in the industry’s history.

Delivering Profitability Despite the Downturn
Comparing 2001 results with the year 2000 - a
record year for Cymer, with our unit shipments,
revenue, net income, gross margin, operating margin,
and net margin at record levels — illustrates the
difficulty of managing 2001.
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For 2001, revenues totaled $269,444,000, a 27
percent decrease from the 2000 record level of
$367,460,000. The reduction in revenue was limited
to ‘“only” 27 percent primarily because of the
company's robust product offering of next-generation
light sources, which experienced demand even in the
downturn. We believe sales of spares and
consumables, which accounted for 29 percent of
annual revenue in 2001, hit bottom in the last few
months of the year. Gross margin in 2001 declined

to 43 percent from 49 percent the prior year, while
operating margin was 5 percent for 2001 versus 25
percent for the year 2000.
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For the year 2001, Cymer posted net income of
$8,485,000 or $0.27 per share (diluted), compared to
$63,772,000, or $2.07 per share (diluted) for the year
2000. Though our net income was greatly reduced
from the prior year, we managed to remain profitable,
unlike many other companies in our industry.

In light of the considerable challenges we faced
during the year, we are pleased with Cymer's
financial and overall company performance.

Managing the Challenges

As 2001 began, our industry seemed poised for
another year of robust growth. Early in the first
quarter, however, our much-improved market
forecasting and analysis process indicated that the
growth cycle was ending. We immediately began
making critical ramp-down decisions, the timing and
magnitude of which would prove to be instrumental in
determining our financial performance throughout
2001. Our investments in streamlining our business
processes and launching a new ERP system in 2000
were extremely well-timed, and enabled our
management team to translate its decisions into well-
considered and measurable actions. Throughout the
year we moved quickly and proactively to make the
tough decisions necessary to decelerate our rate of
cash consumption, while maintaining manufacturing
and global support capabilities and accelerating
critical krypton fluoride (KrF) 248 nanometer (nm)
wavelength and next-generation argon fluoride (ArF)
193 nm wavelength product development.

During the year, we implemented two reductions in
work force, cutting a total of approximately 180
positions. We required every employee to take two
weeks of vacation, and shut down the plant over the




week of Thanksgiving and for two weeks during the
Christmas and New Year's holidays. in addition, we
reduced discretionary spending across all
departments. These and other cost control measures
have enabled us to maintain Cymer's current
operating income breakeven at between $60 and $65
million in quarterly revenue, with cash flow breakeven
between $50 and $55 million in quarterly revenue,
depending on the product mix within any given
quarter.

One of the projects on which we have chosen to
maximize savings is this annual report. By
presenting our 2001 results to you in this austere, “no
frills” format we continue our successful efforts to
reduce costs.

As we entered the downturn, the challenge of
managing the inventory of Cymer light sources at the
lithography tool manufacturers became increasingly
important. In the first quarter, we shipped fewer
systems than our customers initially requested but
even so the number of light sources shipped
exceeded the number of light sources installed at
chipmakers, increasing the inventory at the
lithography tool manufacturers. In the second
quarter, the number of systems shipped and the
number installed were almost equal. In the third and
fourth quarters combined we installed 32 more light
sources at chipmakers than we shipped, bringing the
inventory owned by lithography tool manufacturers
down by approximately 11 percent in the latter half of
the year.
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The Right Product at the Right Time — OQur Self-
Obsolescence Strategy

We shipped a total of 335 light sources in 2001, down
from a record of 494 light sources in 2000. A review
of the breakdown of shipments by product in 2001
illusirates the success of our strategy to bring to
market the right product at the right time and thereby
control the obsolescence of our own products. The
graph below shows the rapid rate of adoption of our
newer products by lithography tool manufacturers
during the year.
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As demand for capacity tools deteriorated, demand
shifted to our newer, more advanced light sources —
our 2.5 kHz KrF and 4 kHz ArF products. The shift
demonstrates the effectiveness of our self-
obsolescence strategy.

Shipments of our ArF products increased over the
year from five percent of units shipped in the first
quarter to 16 percent in the second quarter, 31
percent in the third quarter, and 45 percent in the
fourth quarter of 2001 with the NanoLith™ 7000
accounting for more than half of ArF shipments in the
last six months of the year. At the same time,
shipments of our ELS-6010™ accounted for an
increasing percentage of shipments throughout the
year, as it obsoleted our older ELS-5000 series Iigrht
sources and began to obsolete the ELS-6000™,
shipments of which steadily declined.

And the shift to these higher value added products
has been accompanied by a corresponding increase
in average selling prices (ASPs) throughout the year.
On an annual basis, ASPs grew from $518,000 at the
end of 2000, to $566,000 at the end of 2001. The
following graph shows the increase in our quarterly
ASPs over the last eight quarters. Qur ASP reached
a high of $679,000 in the fourth quarter of last year.




We expect that the ongoing adoption of our newer
products will maintain the trend of rising ASPs.

CYMER'S QUARTERLY AVERAGE SELLING
PRICE
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Our Product Portfolio — Positioning for the Upturn
We believe that a primary characteristic of production
lithography for the next semiconductor industry
upturn will be the first use of two different DUV
wavelengths in the fab — a mix-and-match of ArF for
the most critical features and KrF for less critical
features. This will occur while the application of
Moore's Law will progressively render mercury bulb-
powered i-line and g-line technologies obsolete.
Based on Gartner Dataquest projections for
lithography tool instaliations, we estimate that the
total available market for DUV light sources and
consumables could be in excess of $1 billion annually
at the peak of the next upturn. Therefare, we have
developed a four-part strategy designed to maximize
our participation in this Golden Age of DUV:

o First — Continue to invest heavily in R&D to
further extend our track record of self-obsoleting
our own products.

o Second - Improve the flexibility of our production
capability to encompass a growing number of
light source models across four wavelengths
(KrF, ArF, fluorine (F;) at 157 nm and extreme
ultraviolet (EUV) at 13.5 nm), customized for
each of the three lithography tool manufacturers.

o Third — Maintain the readiness of our global
support infrastructure to help our customers
manage costs in the downturn, while laying the
groundwork to assist them in quickly ramping up
the new era of mix-and-match DUV light sources,
and

e Fourth - Achieve continuing operational
excellence through improved business
processes. We streamlined the company --
enabling us to get the job done more quickly and

effectively — and improved our competitiveness
and our overall operating efficiency. We now can
get more done with fewer resources.

Expanding upon our first strategy to obsolete our own
products, in 2001 we made a series of critical product
marketing decisions. First, that 4 kHz repetition rate
ArF  operation would become a must-have
performance level for all production-bound ArF light
sources. Second, that the availability of a set of “twin
product” light sources — one KrfF, the other ArF -
would mitigate chip makers’ challenges in their future
adoption of mix-and-match DUV wavelengths in
production. And third, that the introduction of these
twin products should begin with ArF rather than KrF.
Why did we introduce the ArF version first? ArF light
source technology is more challenging to engineer
than KrF, so creating the KrF product from the
NanoLith 7000 ArF product has been a fairly
straightforward engineering exercise resuiting in a
very robust KrF tool with an identical configuration.

In 2001, we executed our challenging product
development programs on schedule, with the shortest
new product development cycle times in our history.
The adoption of the NanoLith 7000 was the most
rapid we've ever experienced. All three lithography
tool manufacturers took delivery of the new product in
the third quarter; two systems were installed at chip
makers in that same quarter, and an additional five in
the fourth quarter. We believe this demonstrates the
industry’'s need to purchase and install the latest
technology and have it operating as quickly as
possible, particularly in a downturn,

in December of 2001, we introduced to our
customers our newest, most advanced KrF light
source, the ELS-7000, which should ultimately
obsolete the ELS-6010. The immediate acceptance
of this new product, and the industry’s need for it, are
evidenced by the receipt, late in the fourth quarter, of
more than $14 million of orders for that product —
orders that were received based upon the product on
paper only. This was a first for Cymer, since new
product orders are generally preceded by a
mandatory performance test evaluation of a working
prototype at Cymer. We attribute this change to
growing customer confidence in our predictability —
our ability to do what we say we can do, when we say
we will do it.

The Nanolith 7000 ArF and ELS-7000 KrF light
sources appear identical from the outside, share the
same operating system and software, the same
operator training, and facilities requirements. For the
chipmaker, this commonality of platform translates




into reduced time and expense to tool-up for the era
of DUV mix-and-match, as well as ease in light
source operation and support. For Cymer, the twin
products allow us to reduce the number of our
suppliers and gain efficiencies through the similarity
of manufacturing and support.

These twin products share a 4 kHz repetition rate and
VERRO (variable energy and repetition rate
operation) features, which enable higher power and
give chipmakers higher throughput. Their ultra-
narrow bandwidth enables the use of high numerical
aperture (NA) fenses for improved critical dimension
(CD) control, while their common platform yields
lower cost of operation. In short, these two products
enable us to maintain our market leadership by
offering our customers and end users a complete,
production worthy light source portfolio.

R&D Critical to Our Long-Term Future

For 2001, R&D spending totaled $58.4 million, a 28
percent increase over 2000 spending. This
amounted to 22 percent of revenue for 2001, and 26
percent of revenue in the second half of the year.
Though a higher than usual percentage of revenue,
this level of investment in Cymer's long-term future
was necessary because of the large number of R&D
initiatives we were driving during the year — initiatives
that included the development of the NanoLith 7000,
ELS-7000, our Master Oscillator Power Amplifier
(MOPA) product line, and ongoing development of F,
and EUV products. The progress we made in 2001
with new products and platforms, and at the 157 nm
and 13.5 nm wavelengths satisfactorily justifies our
strategy to invest heavily during this downturn in the
technologies and new products that will be
instrumental to our success come the next, and
subsequent, upturns.
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MOPA - a paradigm shift. In March 2002, we
unveiled a breakthrough dual-gas-discharge-chamber
technology designed to meet the stringent

performance requirements of the next several
generations of lithography tools. The innovative
MOPA, a paradigm shift from current lithography
technology, will enable next-generation light sources
to deliver higher power, tighter bandwidth and lower
cost of operation for future optical lithography
applications across all three DUV wavelengths-
248nm, 193nm and 157nm.

MASTER OSCILLATOR - POWER AMPLIFIER

Power

Master
Dscillator Amplifier

Today, increasing requirements for higher power and
tighter bandwidth place excessive, and often
competing, demands on current single-chamber-
based light source designs. Cymer's new dual-gas-
discharge-chamber technology separates the power
and bandwidth generators to overcome the costly
tradeoffs that have limited the design of new light
sources, enabling chipmakers to achieve the higher
throughput and smaller CDs demanded by next-
generation DUV lithography. Already, initial data
indicate that with this unique dual-chamber design,
future light sources will be capable of reaching very
tight bandwidth performance at high power, with
consumable costs that are significantly below those
of existing single-gas-discharge chambers.  Our
customers enthusiastically received this new light
source design, and we are targeting first system
shipments in the first half of 2003.

Progress at F, and EUY wavelengths. We believe
this new two-stage MOPA system design will solve
the problems researchers have reported while
working with a single stage F; light source. Though
F. light sources will not be needed for production for
several years, we anticipate that this new system
design will help position Cymer as the market leader
when the 157 nm wavelength moves into production.

With EUV, our efforts to produce a production worthy
light source continue to advance. Cymer has been
investigating dense plasma focus (DPF) light sources
for EUV applications since 1997. Qur EUV light
source represents a fourth generation design based
on our proprietary and production-proven solid-state
pulse power technology. The EUV group now has six
prototype EUV light sources operating at Cymer,
each being utilized as a development test stand to




investigate different aspects of technical challenge.
During the last year, the group demonstrated that
Cymer's light source provides greater in-band
collection efficiency than most other discharge
produced plasma sources, and also made
considerable progress in such important areas as
pulse repetition rate, efficiency, debris mitigation, and
power output. Our efforts have put us at the forefront
of EUV development, as we fully understand the light
source is in the critical path of EUV becoming a
production reality. We anticipate shipment of our first
EUV prototype system next year.

In March 2002, we were pleased to announce that a
major U.S. chipmaker provided funding to expedite
our EUV light source R&D efforts. This marks the first
significant external subsidy of our patented DPF
source technology. We believe the chipmaker's
funding offers compelling, tangible evidence of its
confidence in DPF as a viable path for powering
lithography tools in the post-optical era. It provides
us with an opportunity to accelerate and intensify our
EUV R&D efforts and position our proprietary DPF
source technology—aiready considered by many to
be the front-runner in EUV solutions—as the
technology of choice for future production
applications.

Enhancing Operating Efficiency

And what about the impact of improved business
processes on our operating efficiency? Revenue per
employee is a high-level metric frequently used to
compare efficiency of companies in our sector. It can
be a good relative measure of the change in a
company’s efficiency over time. In the current
downturn, we achieved revenue per employee of
$270,000 in the fourth quarter of 2001, a 25 percent
improvement over the $216,000 in revenue per
employee in the trough of the last downturn (fourth
quarter of 1998). Similarly, at the peak of the last
upturn in the fourth quarter of 2000, we achieved
revenue per employee of $455,000, a 56 percent
improvement over the $292,000 in revenue per
employee that we achieved at the peak of the
previous upturn. We clearly owe it to Cymer's
shareholders to continue our ongoing drive to higher
levels of operational excellence.
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Additionally, the effectiveness of Cymer’s business
processes is  demonstrated in efficiency
improvements in several other areas. For example,

o At the end of 2001, we were supporting an
installed base of 1,702 light sources with a
significantly reduced level of spares inventory.
Our ERP system has given us considerably
improved inventory visibility.

s  With our streamlined idea-to-product process, we
were able to generate two ArF product
generations — 2 kHz and 4 kHz products — in just
over 18 months. By contrast, because we began
developing our first 2 kHz KrF product, the ELS-
6000, in late 1997 — before our idea-to-product
process was in place — it took four years to
complete the KrF product line.
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Today, our products are far more complex than they
were a few years ago. We also customize our light
sources for each lithography tool manufacturer. Even
so, we are pleased that the performance of our
systems in the fabs - their uptime and other
measures of overall equipment efficiency — has
continued to improve. As of December 31, 2001,
uptime improved to an average of 99.86 percent for
the year, mean time to repair had fallen to an
average of 2.5 hours for the year, and mean time
between failures — for all systems in the field — had
risen to almost 6000 hours. Compared to other
production equipment in the fab, these numbers are
excellent. They are a testament to the high reliability
and quality of the products themselves, and the
expertise and availability of our service and support
personnel.

Strong Financial Position

Cash, cash equivalents and short and long term
investments totaled $217 million at December 31,
2001. Working capital at year-end totaled $258
million. For 2001, the company generated $58.4
million dollars in cash from operations and capital
spending totaled $26.4 million dollars.

In addition, we repurchased $24.9 million dollars of
our subordinated convertible notes on the open
market at a discount to par. Because of the low
interest rates available early in 2002, we decided in
February to offer a new convertible subordinated note
to refinance the outstanding balance of $147.3 million
in convertible subordinated notes originally issued in
August 1997. These older notes paid an initial
interest rate of 3% percent, which increased, or
stepped up, to 7V percent in August 2000. The new
convertible subordinated note offering was for $250
million aggregate principal amount at a fixed rate of
3% percent. The notes are due in February 2009.

After closing the new note sale, we called the old
notes for redemption. By the March 22, 2002
deadline for conversion of the notes before
redemption, holders of $109.3 million of those notes
converted their notes into approximately 2.3 million
shares of Cymer common stock. The remaining $38
million of the older notes was redeemed for cash.
The net effect of these transactions has given us
approximately $203 million in additional working
capital.

Achievement in a Difficult Year — Reviewing 2001
Highlights

On many fronts, 2001 was an extremely important
year for Cymer — a year that tested the company’s
management team and strategies, the value of our
process initiatives and infrastructure, and the
dedication and resourcefulness of all our employees.
During the year:

o We completed the acquisition of Active Control
eXperts, Inc. (and their ACX technology), now
Cymer Cambridge, laying the groundwork for
future development of non-light source products.
The potential application of the patented ACX
nanomotion mitigation and vibration control
technology at CDs around 100 nm has attracted
significant attention from a number of companies
in our industry, and shows considerable promise
for the future.

o  With TuiLaser AG of Germany we continued our
joint development efforts aimed at creating a new
line of compact light sources (MILAS) for mask
writing, mask inspection and metrology
applications.

o We introduced CymerOnLine™ - the industry’s
first Web-based e-diagnostics and remote
monitoring software for tracking the installed
base of Cymer light sources in a chipmaker’s fab.
Chipmakers using this software package see the
return on their light source investment enhanced
and the light sources’ productivity, uptime and
overall equipment efficiency improved, while cost
of operation is reduced. Customer reaction to the
product and its performance has been uniformly
positive.

e We shipped our first ELS-6010A, our 2 kHz ArF
light source, to meet our direct customers’ need
for a reliable ArF light source for use in process
and material development.

o  We achieved a major milestone in 2001 with the
shipment of our 2000™ light source for lithography
production. Though we began shipping light
sources in 1987, we shipped our first lithography
production light source in 1895. We are proud of




this achievement, and of the growing installed
base of our light sources at chipmakers and other
end users.

o In 2001, we received the prestigious
Semiconductor International Editors’ Choice Best
Product Award for our ELS-6010 2.5 kHz KrF
light source. This was the second consecutive
year Cymer received the award, which is
particularly gratifying because the product’s users
must nominate the product for this award.

o Mid-year, we announced that Nancy Baker would
succeed Bill Angus as CFO effective January 1,
2002. Bill served as Cymer's CFO from 1990,
when he joined the company, through the end of
2001, and he remains with us in a par-time
capacity as corporate secretary until he retires in
2002. Nancy has been with Cymer for almost 10
years and has consistently demonstrated her
financial and management abilities, perhaps most
notably in leading the successful implementation
of our ERP system in 2000. We thank Bill for his
years of outstanding service and strong financial
leadership, and offer Nancy our congratulations
on this well-deserved promotion.

Locking to the Future

We said last year that the downturn would present
significant challenges, as well as significant
opportunities. The results we have achieved during a
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Pascal Didier
President & COO

Robert P. Akins
Chairman & CEO

very difficult year demonstrate that the strategies we
implemented allowed us to take advantage of the
opportunities while we met the challenges head-on.
We believe Cymer dealt with 2001 far more
proactively and decisively than any previous
downturn year. We remained profitable on an annual
basis and ended the vyear far stronger, more
competitive and more efficient than we began it.

Looking forward to the remainder of 2002, we believe
that our winning combination of strategies will not
only allow us to continue to be the market leader, but
will also position us to take advantage of the coming
upturn to maximize the return for shareholders as we
provide a challenging and rewarding working
environment for our employees. We cannot
remember a time at Cymer when we have taken
better advantage of a downturn to position ourseives
for success in the next upturn.

We would like to take this opportunity to publicly
extend our appreciation to all Cymer employees
worldwide for doing such an outstanding job in a
difficult year 2001. We would also like to thank our
customers, suppliers and shareholders for their
ongoing confidence and support.
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Nancy J. Baker
Sr. Vice President & CFO
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Statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K that are not strictly historical in nature are
forward-looking statements. These statements include, but are not limited to, references to
manufacturing activities; product sales; service and support revenues; research and development plans
and expenditures, the adequacy of capital resources; the effects of the continuing downturn in the
semiconductor industry; and competitive positioning. These statements include, but are not limited to,
statements containing the words “believes,” “anticipates,” “expects,” and words of similar import. These
statements are only predictions based on current information and expectations and involve a number of
risks and uncertainties. Actual events or results may differ materially from those projected in such
statements due to various factors, including, but not limited to, those set forth under the caption “Risk
Factors” and elsewhere contained in this report. Cymer assumes no obligation to update any forward-
looking statements contained in this report. :

PART |
{tem 1. Business
General

Cymer is the world’s leading supplier of excimer laser light sources, the essential light source for
deep ultraviolet, (“DUV"), photolithography systems. DUV lithography is a key enabling technology that
has allowed the semiconductor industry to meet the exact specifications and manufacturing
requirements for volume production of today’'s most advanced semiconductor chips. Cymer's lasers are
incorporated into step-and-repeat and step-and-scan photolithography systems for use in the
manufacture of semiconductors with critical feature sizes below 0.35 microns. Cymer's excimer lasers
constitute a substantial majority of all excimer lasers incorporated in DUV photolithography tools.
Cymer’s products consist of photolithography light sources and replacement parts. Cymer also maintains
a worldwide service organization that supports its installed base of over 1,700 light sources. Cymer’s
customers include all three manufacturers of DUV photolithography systems: ASM Lithography, Canon
and Nikon. Photolithography systems incorporating Cymer’s excimer lasers have been purchased by
each of the world's 20 largest semiconductor manufacturers: Advanced Micro Devices, Agere, Fujitsu,
Hitachi, IBM, Infineon, Intel, Matsushita, Micron, Mitsubishi, Motorola, NEC, Philips, Samsung, Sanyo,
Sharp, Sony, ST Microelectronics, Texas Instruments, and Toshiba.

Cymer is a Nevada corporation, incorporated on July 12, 1996. Cymer was originally
incorporated in California in 1986 and reincorporated in Nevada in 1996.

Products and Services
Cymer's products consist of photolithography light sources, replacement parts and service.
Photolithography Light Sources
Cymer's photolithography lasers produce narrow bandwidth pulses of short wavelength light.
The lasers permit very fine feature resolution and high throughput. Cymer has designed its lasers to be

highly reliable, easy to install and compatible with existing semiconductor manufacturing processes. In
2001, Cymer sold 335 laser systems at an average selling price (“ASP”) of $566,000.

248 nm KrF Light Sources

o [ELS-7000™ - Cymer’s [atest krypton fluoride (“KrF”) production light source designed for next-
generation lithography applications at the 248 nanometer ("nm”) wavelength, the ELS-7000 is
expected to be a key enabler in the production of devices with sub-.13 micron design rules. The
ELS-7000, which operates at a repetition rate of 4 kilohertz (*kHz"), provides the highest spectral
power of any of Cymer's KrF light sources, and provides customers with the flexibility to “mix




and match” the KrF and argon fluoride (“ArF") products to accommodate multiple DUV
wavelengths — 248 nm and 193 nm - in the same manufacturing environment.

8000 Series - The 6000 Series represents Cymer’s light sources which are within its cutting-
edge 248 nm KrF portfolio and are designed for the production of semiconductor devices down
to 130 nm (0.13 micron) design rules.

ELS-8010 - The ELS-6010 is a 20 watt (“W”) KrF excimer laser that offers a 2.5 kHz repetition
rate and is designed for 200 mm and 300 mm lithography steppers and scanners with >0.70
numerical aperture (“NA”) lens designs. The ELS-6010 is a key enabler in the production of
devices with 130 nm and below design rules. The ELS-6010 delivers advanced line-narrowed
spectral bandwidth of 0.5 pm full width half maximum (“FWHM") and 1.4 pm (95% energy
integral). The ELS-6010, which is based on the production proven ELS-6000", also incorporates
power and chamber module advances for superior dose stability improving CD control and
process vyield.

ELS-8000™ - The production-proven ELS-6000 is a 2 kHz excimer laser designed for
advanced 200 mm and 300 mm steppers and scanners for the production of devices with 180
nm and below geometries. The 20 W ELS-8000 is designed for the most advanced optical
systems with up to 0.70 NA lens designs. Incorporating advances in the laser chamber, pulse
power and optics modules, the ELS-6000 enables significant improvements in throughput rates
and critical dimension (“*CD") control through its $0.4% energy dose stability, 6 pm bandwidth
FWHM, and 2.0 pm bandwidth at 95% energy integral.

5000 Series - With a repetition rate of 1 kHz, this solid-state pulse power excimer laser series is
engineered using modular construction. Enabling higher device vields by delivering improved
energy stability, this series is designed specifically for use in the manufacture of semiconductors
with 250 nm and smaller design rules.

ELS-5010 - Designed for steppers and scanners with numerical apertures as high as 0.70, the
ELS-5010 provides 10 W of output power, controls bandwidth to 2.0 pm 95% energy integral,
and delivers an energy dose stability of £0.6%.

ELS 5005 Upgrade - Designed for the installed base of ELS-5000 lasers, the upgrade contains
improved, longer-lifetime ELS-5010 core modules and can lower the laser's cost of
consumables (“CoC”) by up to 63% compared to its predecessor, the ELS-5000.

ELS-5000 - The ELS-5000 delivers 10 W of output power and is designed for stepper and
scanner applications with optical designs requiring bandwidths 0.8 pm.

EX-5000 - With 15 W of output power, this model is used for scanner applications with
catadioptric lens designs.

193 nm ArF Product Family

ArF Products - The 193nm ArF product line represents Cymer's most advanced light sources
within the cutting-edge product portfolio and is designed for the production of semiconductor
devices with design rules below 100 nm (0.10 micron).

Nanolith™ 7000 - The NanoLith 7000, 4 kHz 20W ArF production laser for 193 nm step-and-

scan tools provides leading edge optical performance. With highly line-narrowed bandwidth of
<0.5 FWHM and <1.3 pm (95% energy integral) the NanoLith 7000 enables high contrast
imaging from lithography scanners using lenses with an NA over 0.75. The NanoLith 7000 ArF
laser model incorporates new technological solutions in the area of pulsed power design, laser




discharge chamber, and wavelength stabilization, to enable tight control of exposure dose
(< 0.3%) and laser wavelength (<x 0.03pm).

o [ELS-8010A - The ELS-8010A is a highly line-narrowed, high power 193 nm light source for
lithography tools. The ELS-6010A has been designed to meet resolution image contrast, and
wafer throughput requirements in semiconductor chip production at the <130 nm node. The
shorter wavelength enables chip design to shrink, leading to higher processor speed, more
memory per chip, and better yield per wafer. The ELS-6010A, 2kHz 10 watt ArF production
laser for 193 nm step-and-scan tool provides leading edge optical performance. With a highly
line-narrowed bandwidth, the ELS-6010A enables high contrast imaging from lithography
scanners using NA lenses. The ELS-6010A Arf laser model incorporates new technological
solutions in the area of laser discharge chamber and wavelength stabilization, and enables
tighter control of exposure dose (<+0.3%).

o ELX-5000 A - With a repetition rate of 1 kHz, this solid-state pulse power excimer laser series is
engineered using modular construction. Enabling higher device vields by delivering improved
energy stability, this series is designed specifically for use in the manufacture of semiconductors
with 250 nm and smaller. design rules.

Designed for steppers and scanners with numerical apertures as high as 0.70, the ELX-5000 A
provides 5 Watts of output power, controls bandwidth to 2.0 pm 95% energy integral, and
delivers an energy dose stability of £0.6%.

Cymer's lasers incorporate advanced software control and diagnostic systems. The control
system provides users with on-line monitoring of laser operating conditions, with diagnostic readings
(including flow rate, temperatures, pressures and light quality), that are automatically monitored by the
photolithography tool's control system. Additionally, configurable parameters can be adjusted to optimize
the laser's performance for each customer's system. A portable computer attached to the laser logs this
data, automatically providing critical information about performance and reliability. The lasers are also
designed for easy serviceability, with most major modules and components articulated for easy
swing-out or roll-out motion to facilitate inspection and replacement.

Revenues generated from sales of laser systems amounted to approximately $148.9 million,
$255.8 million, and $189.5 million during 1999, 2000, and 2001, respectively.

Replacement Parts

Certain components and subassemblies included in Cymer's lasers require replacement or
refurbishment following extended operation. For example, the discharge chamber of Cymer's lasers has
an expected life of approximately one to seven billion pulses, depending on the model. Cymer estimates
that a laser used in a semiconductor production environment will require one to two replacement
chambers per year. Similarly, certain optical components of the laser dsteriorate with continued
exposure to DUV light and require periodic replacement. Cymer provides these and other spare and
replacement parts for its photolithography lasers as needed by its customers. On a limited basis, Cymer
also refurbishes and resells complete laser systems.

Revenues generated from sales of replacement parts amounted to approximately $66.6 miltion,
$101.8 million, and $62.5 million during 1999, 2000, and 2001, respectively.

Service

As Cymer's installed base of lasers in production at chipmakers exceeds the original warranty
periods, some chipmakers request service contracts from Cymer. Additionally, Cymer provides service
contracts directly to semiconductor equipment manufacturers. These contracts require Cymer to
maintain and/or service these lasers either on an on-call or regular interval basis or both.




Revenues generated from service and service contracts amounted to approximately $2.9
million, $7.4 million, and $11.7 million during 1999, 2000, and 2001, respectively.

Customers and End Users

Cymer sells its photolithography laser products to each of the three manufacturers of DUV

photolithography tools:

ASM Lithography

Canon

Nikon

Cymer believes that maintaining and strengthening customer relationships will play an important

role in maintaining its leading position in the photolithography market.

Cymer works closely with its

customers to integrate Cymer's products into their photolithography tools. Sales to ASM Lithography,
Nikon, and Canon accounted for 32%, 29% and 15%, respectively, of total revenue in 2001.

Revenues generated from customers within the United States amounted to $33.0 million, $69.2

million and $41.3 million during 1999, 2000 and 2001, respectively.

Revenues generated from

customers outside of the United States amounted to $187.6 million, $298.2 million and $228.1 million
during 1999, 2000, and 2001, respectively.

Revenues generated from customers located in Japan amounted to $81.4 million, $156.1 million
and $111.6 million during 1999, 2000 and 2001, respectively. Revenues generated from customers
located in the Netherlands amounted to $76.7 million, $89.7 miilion and $93.2 million during 1999, 2000,

and 2001, respectively.

End users of Cymer's lasers include the world’s 20 largest semiconductor manufacturers. The
following semiconductor manufacturers have purchased one or more DUV photolithography tools

incorporating Cymer's lasers:

United States

Advanced Micro Devices
Agere (Lucent/Cirent)
Agilent

Atmel

Conexant Systems
Cypress

Dominion Semiconductor
HP

1BM

Integrated Device Technology
intel

LS! Logic Corp.

Maxim Integrated Products
Microchip

Micron Technology
Motorola

National Semiconductor
SEMATECH t

Texas Instruments

VLSI

Wafertech

Taiwan/Southeast Asia

1* Silicon

Chartered Semiconductor
ERSO

HNS

Mosel

MXIC

Nan-Ya

Peregrine Semiconductors
ProMOS

PSC

Silicon Manufacturing Partners
Silterra

Sis

SMIC

SSMC

Tech Semiconductor
TSMC

UMC Group

Vanguard International
Winbond Group

1 A semiconductor industry consortium.

Japan

ASET t

Epson

Fujitsu

Hitachi

KMT

Matsushita
Mitsubishi Electric
NEC

Nippon Foundry
Oki Electric

Rohm

Sanyo

SELETE {

Sharp

Sony

Trecenti Technologies
Toshiba

Korea

Anam-TI
Dongbu
Hynix
Samsung

Europe

Altis Semiconductor
C-NET

Ericson

IMEC 1

Infineon Technologies
Micronas

Philips

ST Microelectronics




Backlog

Cymer schedules production of lasers based upon order backlog and informal customer
forecasts. Cymer includes in backlog only those orders to which a purchase order number has been
assigned by the customer and for which delivery has been specified within 12 months. Because
customers may cancel or delay orders with little or no penalty, Cymer's backlog as of any particular date
may not be a reliable indicator of actual sales for any succeeding period. At December 31, 2001, Cymer
had a backlog of approximately $97.1 milion compared with a backlog of $132.7 million at
December 31, 2000.

Manufacturing

Cymer's manufacturing activities consist of material management, assembly, integration and
testing. These activities are performed in a 124,000 square foot facility in San Diego, California that
includes approximately 31,000 square feet of class 1000 clean room manufacturing and test space. In
order to focus its own resources, capitalize on the expertise of its key suppliers and respond more
efficiently to customer demand, Cymer has outsourced the manufacture of many of its subassemblies.
Cymer's outsourcing strategy is exemplified by the modular design of Cymer's products. Substantially all
of the manufacture of the nonproprietary subassemblies have been outsourced. Cymer is increasingly
dependent upon these outsourced suppliers to meet Cymer's manufacturing schedules. The failure by
one or more of these suppliers to supply Cymer on a timely basis with sufficient quantities of
components or subassemblies that perform to Cymer's specifications could affect Cymer's ability to
deliver completed lasers to its customers on schedule. Cymer believes that the highly outsourced
content and manufacturable design of its products allows for reduced manufacturing cycle times and
increased output per employee. To improve current production efficiencies, costs, and manage overall
manufacturing capacity, Cymer intends to continue to provide additional training to manufacturing
personnel, improve its assembly and test processes in order to reduce cycle time, invest in additional
manufacturing tooling and further develop its supplier management and engineering capabilities.

In addition to the manufacturing capacity at its facilities in San Diego, California, Cymer has
qualified Seiko Instruments, Inc. (“Seiko”) of Japan as a contract manufacturer of its lasers. In order to
ensure uniformity of product for all customers, Cymer maintains control of all work flow design,
manufacturing processes, engineering changes and component sourcing decisions. Cymer
manufactures and seals all core technology modules in San Diego. The original contract manufacturing
agreement with Seiko expires in 2003, but will automatically renew every two years thereafter, unless
one year's notice to terminate is given by either party. No notice to terminate has been given or received
by Cymer. Seiko began production of lasers for Cymer in 1997.

Certain of the components and subassemblies included in Cymer's products are obtained from a
single supplier or a limited group of suppliers. In some cases, there are no alternative sources for
these components and subassemblies, including certain optical components used in Cymer's lasers. To
date Cymer has been able to obtain adequate supplies of the components and subassemblies used in
the production of Cymer’s laser systems in a timely manner from existing sources. [f in the future Cymer
is unable to obtain sufficient quantities of required materials, components or subassemblies, or if such
items do not meet Cymer's quality standards, delays or reductions in product shipments could occur
which could have a material adverse effect on Cymer's business, financiat condition and results of
operations.

Sales and Marketing

Cymer's sales and marketing efforts have been predominately focused on DUV photolithography
tool manufacturers. Cymer markets and sells its products through its own worldwide direct sales force.
Cymer has developed product and applications engineering teams to support the account managers and
Cymer's customers. Cymer believes that to facilitate the sales process it must work closely with and
understand the requirements of semiconductor manufacturers, the end users of Cymer's products.




Cymer visits major semiconductor manufacturers, and their representatives attend Company-
sponsored seminars on advanced excimer photolithography. In Japan, Cymer sponsors an annual
seminar with Seiko in conjunction with SEMICON Japan. This seminar has attracted representatives of
semiconductor manufacturers from Japan, Korea, the United States and SEMATECH, as well as
photolithography tool manufacturers and other photolithography process suppliers.

Service and Support

Cymer believes its success in the semiconductor photolithography market is highly dependent
upon after-sales support of both the direct customer and the end user. Cymer supports its customers
with field service, technical service engineers and training programs, and in some cases provides
ongoing on-site technical support at the customer's manufacturing facility. Prior to shipment, Cymer's
support personnel typically assist the customer in site preparation and inspection and provide customers
with training at Cymer's facilities or at the customer's location. Customers and end users are also
provided with a comprehensive set of manuals, including operations, maintenance, service, dlagnostlc
and safety manuals.

Cymer's field engineers and technical support specialists are based at its San Diego
headquarters, and at its four field service offices located throughout the United States. Support in
Europe, Japan, Korea, Singapore and Southeast Asia are provided by Cymer's subsidiaries located
within those regions. As part of its customer service, Cymer maintains an inventory of spare paris at
each of its service facilities. As Cymer’s installed base grows, replacement parts required to satisfy
worldwide support requirements, as well as Cymer’s own logistics support organization, will be subject to
the fluctuating demands of the semiconductor industry. In order {o meet these demands, Cymer must
continue to effectively manage its production of component modules which are required for new systems
as well as for support and warranty requirements.

Cymer believes that the need to provide fast and responsive service to the semiconductor
manufacturers using its lasers is critical and that it will not be able to depend solely on its customers to
provide this specialized service. Therefore, Cymer believes it is essential to maintain, through its own
personnel or through trained third party sources, a rapid response capability to service its customers
throughout the world. Accordingly, Cymer has an ongoing effort to continuousiy develop its direct
support infrastructure in Japan, Korea, Taiwan and Southeast Asia, Singapore, Europe and the United
States. This task entails recruiting and training qualified field service personnel or identifying qualified
independent firms and maintaining effective and highly trained organizations that can provide service to
customers in various countries in their assigned regions. There can be no assurance that Cymer will
continue to attract qualified personnel to maintain these operations successfully or that the cests of such
operations will not be excessive. A failure to effectively continue this worldwide support infrastructure
could have a material adverse effect on Cymer's business, financial condition and results of operations.

Cymer generally warrants its new laser products against defects in design, materials, and
workmanship. The warranty coverage period and terms vary by laser model. In general, the warranty
coverage period ranges from 17 to 26 months after shipment.

Research and Development

The semiconductor industry is subject to rapid technological change and new product
introductions and enhancements. Cymer believes that continued and timely development and
introduction of new and enhanced laser products are sssential for Cymer to maintain its compstitive
position. Cymer intends to continue to develop its technology and innovative products to meet customer
demands. Current projects include enhancements to Cymer’'s KrF and ArF lasers and the development
of the next generation of photolithography lasers. Other research and development efforts are currently
focused on F2 and extreme ultra violet (“EUV”) technology and product development as well as ongeing
product improvements in reducing manufacturing costs, lowering the cost of laser operation, enhancing
laser performance, developing new features for existing lasers, and development of non-laser light
sources. In March 2002, Cymer announced an agreement with a major U.S. chipmaker to provide
funding for Cymer’s research and development efforts on EUV technology.




Cymer has historically devoted a significant portion of its financial resources to research and
development programs and expects to continue to allocate significant resources to these efforts.
Research and development expenses for 1999, 2000, and 2001 were approximately $34.5 million, $45.4
million, and $58.4 million, respectively.

In addition to funding its own research and development projects, Cymer has pursued a strategy
of securing research and development contracts from customers, government agencies and
SEMATECH, a semiconductor industry consortium, in order to develop advanced technology for current
and future laser systems based on Cymer's core technology. Revenues generated from research and
development contracts amounted to approximately $399,000, $1.2 million, and $2.4 million during 1999,
2000, and 2001, respectively.

Cymer plans to expand outside the lithography sector of the semiconductor capital equipment
industry by enhancing existing products, offering new products and developing new semiconductor
applications. Cymer Cambridge, which was known as Active Control eXperts (*ACX") prior o its
acquisition by Cymer in February 2001, provides Cymer with opportunities to enhance and develop new
products through the ACX active structural control technology that can diagnose, design and implement
a motion control solution for unwanted nano-motions. This technology may be applied to many types of
equipment and enhance the platforms of tools. In addition, Cymer’s agreement with Tuilaser AG
provides ' Cymer with opportunities to enhance existing products and expiore other areas of
semiconductor equipment applications.

Intellectual Property Rights

Cymer believes that the success of its business depends more on such factors as the technical
expertise of its employees, as well as their innovative skills and marketing and customer relations ability,
than on patents, copyrights, trade secrets and other intellectual property rights. Nevertheless, the
success of Cymer may depend in part on patents. As of December 31, 2001, Cymer owned 136 United
States patents covering certain aspects of technology associated with excimer lasers and piezo
techniques. Such patents will expire at various times during the period from January 2008 through
February 2020. As of December 31, 2001, Cymer had also applied for 98 additional patents in the
United States. As of December 31, 2001, Cymer owned 110 foreign patents and had filed 281 patent
applications pending in various foreign countries.

Cymer's pending patent applications and any future applications might not be approved.
Cymer's patents might not provide Cymer with competitive advantages. Third parties might challenge
Cymer’s patents. In addition, third parties’ patents might have an adverse effect on Cymer's ability to do
business. In this regard, due to cost constraints, Cymer did not begin filing for patents in Japan or other
countries with respect to inventions covered by its United States patents and patent applications until
1993. Therefore, Cymer lost the right to seek foreign patent protection for certain of its early inventions.
Additionally, because foreign patents may afford less protection under applicable foreign law than may
be available under corresponding United States patent law, any such patents issued to Cymer might not
adequately protect Cymer's technology in a given foreign jurisdiction. Furthermore, third parties might
independently develop similar products, duplicate Cymer's products or, to the extent patents are issued
to Cymer, design around those patents.

Others may have filed and in the future may file patent applications that are similar or identical to
those of Cymer. To determine the priority of inventions, Cymer may have to participate in interference
proceedings declared by the United States Patent and Trademark Office. Such interference proceedings
could result in substantial cost to Cymer. Such third party patent applications might have priority over
patent applications filed by Cymer.

Cymer also relies upon trade secret protection, employee and third-party nondisclosure
agreements and other intellectual property protection methods to protect its confidential and proprietary
information. Despite these efforts, third parties might independently develop substantially equivalent
proprietary information and techniques or otherwise gain access to Cymer's trade secrets or disclose
such technology. Cymer might not be able to meaningfully protect its trade secrets.




Cymer has in the past funded a portion of its research and development expenses from outside
research and development revenues. Cymer has received such revenues from photolithography tool
manufacturers and from SEMATECH in connection with the design and development of specific products.
Cymer currently funds a small portion of its development expenses through SEMATECH, tool
manufacturers and semiconductor manufacturers. Although Cymer's arrangements with these
manufacturers and SEMATECH seek to clarify the ownership of the intellectual property arising from
research and development services performed by Cymer, disputes over the ownership or rights to use or
market such intellectual property might arise between Cymer and such parties. Any such dispute couid
result in restrictions on Cymer'’s ability to market its products and could have a material adverse effect on
Cymer’s business, financial condition and resuits of operations.

Third parties have in the past notified, and may in the future notify, Cymer that it may be infringing
intellectual property rights of others. Conversely, Cymer has in the past notified, and may in the future
notify, third parties that they may be infringing Cymer's intellectual property rights.

Specifically, Cymer has engaged in discussions with Gigaphoton, a joint venture between Ushio
and Komatsu, with respect to certain of Komatsu's Japanese patents, in the course of which Komatsu has
also identified to Cymer a number of additional Japanese and U.S. patents that Komatsu asserts may be
infringed by Cymer or by Cymer’s Japanese manufacturing partner, Seiko. Komatsu has also notified
one of Cymer’s integrator customers, Nikon, of its belief that Cymer’s lasers infringe several of Komatsu’s
Japanese and U.S. patents. Cymer, in consultation with Japanese patent counsel, has initiated
oppositions to certain Komatsu Japanese patents and patent applications in the Japanese Patent Office.
Some of these oppositions have been dismissed by the Japanese Patent Office. Litigation might ensue
with respect to the Komatsu Japanese patents or Komatsu U.S. patents. Also, Komatsu might assert
infringement claims under other or additional patents. Komatsu has notified Seiko that Komatsu intends
to enforce its rights under the Komatsu Japanese patents against Seiko if Seiko engages in
manufacturing activities for Cymer. In connection with its manufacturing agreement with Seiko, Cymer
has agreed to indemnify Seiko against such claims under certain circumstances. Cymer and Seiko mlght
not ultimately prevail in any such litigation.

Cymer has notified its competitors and others of Cymer’'s United States patent portfolio. Cymer
has specifically asseried certain of its U.S. patents against Komatsu when informed that Komatsu lasers
might be integrated into steppers intended for shipment into the U.S. Cymer and Komatsu have engaged
in discussions with regard to each party's claims. Those discussions might not be successful and
litigation could result. Attorneys representing Komatsu are currently challenging one of Cymer's U.S.
patents in the U.S. Patent Office. During 2000, Komatsu's lithography laser business was transferred to
Gigaphoton, Inc., a joint venture of Komatsu and Ushio, Inc. In this event, Cymer and Gigaphoton have
engaged in discussions with regard to each party’s patents. Those discussions might not be successful
and litigation could result. Cymer has also been engaged in patent discussions with another competitor,
lLambda-Physik, concerning allegations by each party against the other of possible patent infringement.
These discussions also might not be successful and litigation could result. :

Any patent litigation initiated by Cymer, or initiated by Cymer’'s competitors against Cymer, would,
at a minimum, be costly. Litigation could also divert the efforts and attention of Cymer's management and
technical personnel. Both could have a material adverse effect on Cymer's business, financial condition
and results of operations. Furthermore, in the future other third parties might assert other infringement
claims, and customers and end users of Cymer’'s products might assert other claims for indemnification
resulting from infringement claims. Such assertions, if proven to be true, might materially adversely affect
Cymer's business, financial condition and results of operations. If any such claims are asserted against
Cymer, Cymer may seek to obtain a license under the third party's intellectual property rights. However,
such a license might not be availabie on reasonable terms or at all. Cymer could decide, in the
alternative, to resort to litigation to chalienge such claims or to design around the patented technology.
Any of these actions could be costly and would divert the efforts and attention of Cymer's management
and technical personnel, which would materially adversely affect Cymer’s business, financial condition
and results of operations.




Effective August 1, 1989 and lasting until the expiration of the licensed patents, Cymer entered
into an agreement for a nonexclusive worldwide license to use or sell certain patented laser technology
with Patlex Corp., a patent holding company ("Patlex"). Under the terms of the agreement, Cymer is
required to pay royalties ranging from 0.25% to 5.0% of gross sales and leases of its lasers, subject to
an annual cap of $100,000 per year. During 1999, 2000 and 2001, royalty fees totaled $100,000 per
year.

Cymer has granted Seiko the exclusive right in Japan and the non-exclusive right outside of
Japan to manufacture and sell Cymer's industrial high power laser and subsequent enhancements
thereto. Cymer has also granted Seiko a right of first refusal to fund Cymer's development of, and
receive a license to, new industrial iaser technologies not developed with funding from other parties. In
exchange for these rights, Cymer received up-front license fees of $3.0 million in aggregate during 1892
and 1893. Cymer was also entitled to royalties of 5% on related product sales through September 1988,
after which the royalty rate is subject to renegotiation. Through 1998, Cymer earned no royalties under
the agreement. The license agreement also provides that product sales between Cymer and Seiko will
be at a 15% discount from the respective companies’ list prices. The agreement terminates in August
2012. There has been no Seiko production or sales activity associated with this contract to date.

Cymer has registered the trademark CYMER in the United States and certain other countries
and is seeking additional registrations of other trademarks including “Insist on Cymer” in the United
States and in certain other countries. Cymer uses these and a variety of other marks in its
advertisements and other business activities around the world. Based on the use of these or other
marks, Cymer might be subjected to actions for trademark infringement, which could be costly to defend.
If a challenge to @ mark were to be successful, Cymer might be required to cease use of the mark and,
potentially, to pay damages.

Competition

Cymer believes that the principal elements of competition in Cymer's markets are the technical
performance characteristics of the excimer laser products and the operating efficiency of the system,
which is based on availability, performance efficiency and rate of quality. Cymer believes that it
competes favorably with respect to these factors.

Cymer currently has two significant competitors in the market for laser systems for DUV
photolithography applications. Gigaphoton, a joint venture between two large companies, Komatsu and
Ushio, is headquartered in Japan, and Lambda-Physik, which is headquartered in Germany. Cymer
believes that Gigaphoton and Lambda-Physik are aggressively seeking to gain larger positions in this
market. Cymer believes that its customers have each purchased products offered by these competitors
and that its customers have qualified the competitors’ lasers for use with their products. Beth of these

‘companies are located in closer proximity to certain of Cymer’s customers than Cymer. Cymer believes

that Gigaphoton in particular has been qualified for production use by chipmakers in Japan and
elsewhere. Cymer also believes that Lambda-Physik has been qualified for production use by
chipmakers in the U.S, and Europe. Cymer could lose market share and its growth could slow or even
decline as competitors gain market acceptance.

In the future, Cymer will likely experience competition from other technologies, such as EUV and
scalpel processes. To remain competitive, Cymer believes that it will need to manufacture and deliver
products to customers on a timely basis and without significant defects, and maintain a high level of
investment in research and development and in sales and marketing. Cymer might not have sufficient
resources to continue to make the investments necessary to maintain its competitive position.

Larger competitors with substantially greater financial resources, including other manufacturers
of industrial light sources for advanced lithography, might atiempt to enter the market. Further, other
competitors may introduce new and enhanced product offerings that customers deem superior to
Cymer's products. Future competitors may also be attracted to Cymer’s growing installed base of laser
light sources and seek to provide consumables and refurbished parts to that installed base.




Cymer might not remain competitive. A failure to remain competitive would have a material
adverse effect on Cymer's business, financial condition and results of operations.

Employees

On December 31, 2001, Cymer employed 811 persons worldwide. No employees are currently
covered by collective bargaining agreements or are members of any labor organization as far as Cymer
is aware. Cymer has not experienced any work stoppages and believes that its employee relations are
good.

Executive Officers

Set forth below is certain information regarding the executive officers of Cymer and their ages as
of December 31, 2001.

Name Age Position
Robert P. Akins ...................... 50 Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Pascal Didier ................coe 43  President and Chief Operating Officer
William A. Angus, IIF (1).............. 55  Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary
Nancy J. Baker (1).......cccocvnnnenn. 38  Vice President, Finance and Treasurer
Wallace E. Breitman ................ 62  Senior Vice President, Human Resources and Administration
AlbertCefalo ...........ccoeeiinnn, 56  Senior Vice President, Chief Inteliectual Property Counsel
Edward P. Holtaway ................. 46  Senior Vice President, Operations and Business Process
Brian Klene .............cooeienl, 44  Senior Vice President, Marketing and Business Development
John Shin ..., 48  Senior Vice President, Worldwide Customer Operations
David Knowles ...................... 41 Vice President, Product Development
William Partlo ......................... 37 Vice President, Research and Development
Motohiko Tahara ..................... 59  President, Cymer Japan

(1) Mr. Angus stepped down as Cymer's senior vice president and chief financial officer and Ms. Baker was
promoted to senior vice president and chief financial officer as of January 1, 2002.

Robert P. Akins, one of Cymer's co-founders, has served as its chairman and chief executive
officer since its inception in 1986, and also served as president of the company from its inception until
May 2000. He currently serves on the board of directors for both Extraction Systems Inc. and SEMI
North America, and on the council of advisors to the Irwin and Joan Jacobs School of Engineering at the
University of California, San Diego (UCSD). Akins received the Ernst & Young Entrepreneur of the Year
Award for San Diego County in 1997, and with fellow co-founder Rick Sandstrom, received the
outstanding alumnus award from UCSD, and the prestigious SEMI Award for North America, the highest
honor conferred by Semiconductor Equipment and Materials International, in 1986 for contributions to
the field of DUV lithography. He received a bachelor's degree in physics, a bachelor's degree in
literature, and a doctorate in applied physics from the University of California, San Diego.

Pascal Didier has served as president and chief operating officer since May 2000. He served as
senior vice president, worldwide customer operations from November 1997 until May 2000, and served
as vice president of sales and marketing from July 1987, when he joined the company, until November
of that year. He served as vice president of worldwide sales and field operations with GaSonics
International, a semiconductor capital equipment manufacturer, from June 1985 to June 1997, and
served in the additional capacity of vice president of Asia/Pacific for that company from June 1985 to
June 1896. Prior to that, Didier served for two years as vice president of international operations for
Megatest Corporation, a semiconductor test equipment manufacturer. Didier holds a bachelor's degree
in business and administration from the College de Paris VIl and a bachelor's degree in electronics from
the Institut Universitaire de Lyon.
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William A. Angus, lll, has continued to serve as secretary since July 1990. From February 1996
to December, 2001, he served as Cymer’s senior vice president and chief financial officer. From July
1990 to February 1996, he served as Vice President of Finance and Administration. From April 1888 to
June 1990, he was executive vice president and chief operating officer, and from May 1985 to April
1988, chief financial officer, of Avant Garde Computing Inc., a manufacturer of data communications
network management systems. He received a bachelor's degree in economics from the Wharton School
of the University of Pennsylvania in 1968.

Nancy J. Baker, has served as senior vice president and chief financial officer since January
2002. Prior to that, she served as Cymer’s vice president, finance and treasurer from June 1998 to
December 2001. During 2000, she headed the company’s successful effort to implement a new ERP
system, which was implemented in San Diego in only six months, and globally in only nine months. From
October 1996 to June 1998 she served as director, corporate finance and treasurer. She joined Cymer
as corporate controller for worldwide operations in August 1992. Baker's professional career spans
more than 15 years, and prior to joining Cymer, she held a variety of financial management positions
with an international manufacturer in the San Diego area. Baker received a bachelor’s degree in
accounting from the University of Texas at Austin in 1985 and completed the executive advanced
management program (AMP) at Harvard Business School in 1999,

Wallace E. (“Wally”) Breitman has served as senior vice president of human resources and
administration since January 2000. He joined Cymer in March 1999 as vice president, human resources.
Breitman has more than 20 years experience in the human resources field, and immediately prior to
joining Cymer served as vice president, human resources for Walker, Inc., a software and systems
integration company located in San Francisco. Breitman has extensive experience in designing and
implementing compensation, incentive, stock, and performance systems; training, development, and
organizational development programs, international and expatriate programs, and positive employee
relations and retention programs. He holds a bachelor's degree in literature and a master's degree in
American Civilization, both from New York University.

Albert Cefalo joined Cymer as senior vice president, chief intellectual property counsel, in April
2001. In this role he is responsible for the strategy, and the execution of the strategy, for Cymer's
intellectual property, especially its strong patent portfolio. Before joining Cymer, Cefalo was associate
general counsel and director of intellectual property at Apple Computer from 1898 to 2001. Prior to that,
he served as chief intellectual property counsel at PictureTel Corporation in Andover, Mass. From 1979
to 1997, Cefalo guided the domestic and foreign intellectual property efforts of Digital Equipment
Corporation in Maynard, Mass. He is a member of the New York and Massachusetts Bars, the Licensing
Executives Society, and the American Intellectual Property Law Association. Cefalo earned a juris doctor
degree from Suffolk University Law School in Boston, and both a master's degree in engineering science
and a bachelor's degree in aeronautical engineering from the Rensselaer Poiytechnic Institute in Troy,
NY.

Edward P. (“Ted”) Holtaway has served as senior vice president of operations and business
process management since May 2000. He joined Cymer in July 1998 as senior vice president of process
quality. For the previous 13 years, he developed processes for San Diego-based Brooktree Corp., a
fabless semiconductor company acquired by Rockwell Semiconductor Systems in September of 1996.
During his tenure there, Holtaway's executive posts included director of Rockwell's San Diego operations
from 1997 to 1998, vice president and managing director of Brooktree's Singapore operations from 1985
fo 1996, and vice president of corporate quality from 1989 to 1895. Holtaway holds a bachelor's degree
in electrical engineering from the New Jersey iInstitute of Technology, a master's degree in electrical
engineering from the Polytechnic Institute of New York, and a master's degree in business
administration from San Diego State University.

Brian Klene joined Cymer as senior vice president, marketing and business development, in
June 2000. Prior to joining Cymer, Klene served for two years as vice president, strategic planning and
business development at Chartered Semiconductor Manufacturing Ltd. in Singapore. From 1995 to
1997, he served as executive vice president, sales and marketing at Micron Electronics, Inc., Nampa,
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Idaho. Before that, he served as director of North American sales with Micron Technology, Inc., Boise,
Idaho, from 1989 to 1994. He also served in a variety of sales and marketing positions of increasing
responsibility with IBM Corp. in Los Angeles from 1979 to 1988. Klene holds a master's degree in
business administration from the University of Southern California, and a bachelor's degree from The
Citadel, Charleston, S.C.

John Shin has served as senior vice president, worldwide customer operations since June
2000. He served as vice president, worldwide customer operations from September 1299 to June, 2000,
as vice president of worldwide field operations from April 1999 to September 1899, and as vice
president, Asia/Pacific Operations from March of 1998 to April of 1999. He joined Cymer as president,
Cymer Korea in May 1997. Immediately prior to joining Cymer, Shin served as president, Tencor
Instruments Korea. From early 1993 to late 1996 he served as Country Manager, Korea for Watkins-
Johnson Company. Before that, he served as a sales account manager in Korea for Applied Materials,
and earlier, served for six years as a business development manager with Samsung America in Santa
Clara, California. Shin holds a master's degree in computer science from indiana University, and a
bachelor's degree in business from Hankuk University of Foreign Studies, in Seoul, Korea.

David Knowles, Ph.D., has served as vice president, engineering since March, 2000. Since
joining Cymer in 1997, he has held various positions including manager of optics focus factory and
program manager for the ELS-5010, ELS-5000A and ELS-6010 development programs. Knowles
served as a physicist/program manager from 1994 to 1997 with Naval Research & Development (NraD)
in San Diego, where he was responsible for developing sensors using optical and spectroscopic
techniques. From 1991 to 1984, he was a Research Fellow with the Centre for Lasers and Applications
in Sydney, Australia, where he started and directed the mid-infrared solid-state laser laboratory.
Knowles holds a doctorate in physics from the Massachusetits Institute of Technology (MIT). He also
holds a bachelor's degree in applied engineering & physics from Cornell University in Iithaca, New York.
Knowles has written 19 articles for various publications and conference proceedings, and has two
patents in the application stage.

William Partlo, Ph.D., has served as vice president, research and development, since
December, 1999. From March 1998 to December 1999, he served as director of EUV development, and
was responsible for the development of an extreme ultraviolet (EUV) radiation source for next
generation semiconductor microlithography. From 1996 to March 1899, he served as a senior scientist,
and from 1994 to 1996 as a program manager. Partio joined Cymer in 1993 as a research scientist.
Before that, he served as a staff scientist at GCA/TROPEL INC., in Rochester, New York. Partlo holds a
doctorate and master's degrees, both in engineering, from the University of California, Berkeley, and a
bachelor's degree in engineering from the University of Wisconsin, Madison.

Motohike Tahara, has served as president, Cymer Japan, Inc. since September 2000. Prior to
joining Cymer, Mr. Tahara served for more than nine years with wholly owned subsidiaries or joint
ventures of Applied Materials. From 1999 until joining Cymer, he served as vice president and Japan
Representative of AKT inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Applied Materials, and the successor
company to Applied Komatsu Technology, Inc., a joint venture between Applied Materials and Komatsu,
where he served as vice president for two years. From 1991 to 1997, he served in positions of
increasing responsibility with Applied Materials Japan, Inc., where he rose to the position of vice
president. Prior to that, he served for five years as president of ULVAC-BTU Japan, a supplier of
vertical furnaces and other equipment to the semiconductor industry. During the first 19 years of his
career, he served in a variety of positions with Sumitomo Corporation, including one year as a director
of sales and marketing in a joint venture with GCA Corporation, and five years as a director in the
semiconductor manufacturing equipment division at Sumisho Electronics Systems. Mr. Tahara holds a
bachelor's degree in mechanical engineering from Osaka University, Japan.

Executive officers serve at the discretion of the Board of Directors. There are no family
relationships between any of the directors and executive officers of Cymer.
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ltem 2. Properties

Cymer's corporate headquarters, manufacturing, engineering and R&D facilities are located in
San Diego, California housed in multiple buildings totaling approximately 330,000 square feet. Three of
the four buildings currently occupied are leased by Cymer under leases expiring between August 2002
and January 2010. The fourth building is owned and operated by Cymer. In addition, Cymer owns a two
parcel 5.97 acre undeveloped site adjacent to the existing campus for future expansion capabilities.
Cymer also leases the following facilities for use as field service office, manufacturing and design
operations: a 400 square foot facility in Middleboro, Massachusetts under a lease expiring August 2002;
a 1,857 square foot facility in Santa Clara, California under a lease expiring September 2002; a 1,627
square foot facility in Austin, Texas under a lease expiring October 2005: a 1,857 square foot facility in
Portland, Oregon expiring in April 2006 and a 24,000 square foot facility in Boston, Massachusetts.
Cymer also leases the following for use as internationally located field service and sales offices: 13,831
square feet of facilities in Ichikawa, Japan under a renewable two-year lease expiring in June 2002; 807
square feet in Osaka, Japan under a lease expiring in December 2003; 4,184 square feet in Pundang,
Korea under a lease expiring August 2004; 4,821 square feet in Hsin Chu, Taiwan under a lease
expiring June 2004; 1,866 square feet in United Square, Singapore under a lease expiring in May 2002;
3,715 square feet in Maarssen, Netherlands under a lease expiring in May 2004 and a 2,605 square foot
lease in Veldhoven, Netherlands expiring in May 2005. Cymer aiso has a 10-year land lease on
approximately 2.3 acres in Pyongtaek-city, Kyonggi Province near Seoul Korea for potential future
construction of a manufacturing, sales and administration facility. Cymer intends to add additionai field
service offices as necessary to service and support its customers.

ftem 3. Legal Proceedings

Cymer had been named as a defendant in several putative shareholder class action lawsuits
which were filed in September and October, 1998 in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of
California. Certain executive officers and directors of Cymer are also named as defendants. The
plaintiffs purport to represent a class of ail persons who purchased Cymer’s common stock between
April 24, 1997 and September 26, 1997. The complaints allege claims under the federal securities laws.
The plaintiffs allege that Cymer and the other defendants made various material misrepresentations and
omissions during the Class Period. The complaints do not specify the amount of damages sought. The
compilaints had been consolidated into a single action and a class representative had been appointed by
the court. A consolidated amended complaint was filed in early August 1999. On November 5, 1999,
Cymer and the other defendants filed a motion to dismiss the consolidated amended complaint for
failure to state a cause of action. On April 1, 2000, the court granted defendants’ motion to dismiss with
leave to amend the complaint by the plaintiffs. The plaintiffs filed their second amended consolidated
complaint on June 5, 2000. Cymer moved to dismiss the amended complaint on August 4, 2000. On
October 1, 2001, the court granted Cymer’'s motion to dismiss the second and consolidated complaint
with prejudice and entered judgment in favor of all defendants and against plaintiffs. On October 30,
2001, the plaintiffs appealed the judgment in the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals. While the appeal is still
pending, the plaintiffs have recently notified Cymer that they intend to voluntarily dismiss the appeal.
Upon dismissal of the appeal, the case will have ended and the judgment of the lower court in favor of
Cymer will become final.

ltem 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of the security holders of Cymer during the fourth quarter of

the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001.
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PART H
item 3. Market for Registrant's Common Stock and Related Stockholder Matters

Cymer's Common Stock is publicly traded on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol
“CYMI”. The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low closing sales prices of
Cymer's Common Stock as reported by the Nasdag National Market.

Year ended December 31, 2000 High Low

First quarter $67.00 $41.50

Second quarter $57.92 $26.19

Third quarter $52.00 $30.25

- Fourth quarter $32.00 $16.13
_ Year ended December 31, 2001

; First quarter $36.00 $18.81

Second quarter $34.35 $18.35

Third quarter $30.20 $14.15

Fourth quarter $28.15 $14.91

The closing sales price of Cymer's Common Stock on the Nasdaq National Market was $47.55 on
March 15, 2002 and there were 431 registered holders of record as of that date.

Cymer has never declared or paid cash dividends on its Common Stock and currently does not
anticipate paying cash dividends in the future.

item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with Cymer’s
- consolidated financial statements and notes thereto and with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” which are included elsewhere in this report.

Years ended December 31,
1997 1998 1999 2000 2001
(in thousands, except per share data)

Consolidated Statement of Income Data:

Revenues:
Product sales $201,191 $184,828 $220,051 $366,280 $267,003
Other 2,456 313 389 1,180 2,441
Total revenues 203,647 185,141 220,450 367,460 269,444

Costs and expenses:

Cost of product sales 123,654 125,713 143,105 187,579 151,340

Research and development 24,971 30,1562 34,518 45,433 58,368

Sales and marketing 11,992 14,528 16,742 20,098 19,617

General and administrative 8,586 9,487 13,101 22,510 18,990

E Amortization of goodwill and intangible assets - - - 108 3,148
Purchased in-process research and development - - - - 5,050

Total costs and expenses 169,203 179,880 207,466 275,728 256,513

Operating income 34,444 5,261 12,984 91,732 12,931
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Other income (expense) - net

Income before income tax provision (benefit)
and minority interest

Income tax provision (benefit)

Minority interest

income before extraordinary item and
cumulative change in accounting principle

Extraordinary gain on debt extinguishment
Cumulative change in accounting principle

Net income

Basic earnings per share

Weighted average common shares
outstanding

Diluted earnings per share

Weighted average common and common
equivalent shares outstanding

Consoclidated Balance Sheet Data:
.- Cash and cash equivalents

Working capital

Total assets

Total long-term debt

Treasury stock

Stockholders' equity

Years ended December 31,

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001
(in thousands, except per share data)
112 (3,568) (3,748) (1,230) (1,447)
34,556 1,693 9,236 90,502 11,484
8,639 (1,250) - 26,246 2,871
141 (420) (663) (484) (368)
26,058 2,523 8,573 63,772 8,245
- - - - 610
- - - - (370)
$26,058 $2,523 $8,573 $63,772 $8,485
$0.92 $0.09 $0.31 $2.19 $0.28
28,212 28,226 27,907 29,113 30,474
$0.86 $0.09 $0.29 $2.07 $0.27
30,267 29,566 29,840 30,758 31,108
December 31,
1997 1998 1999 2000 2001
(in thousands)
$51,903 $53,130 $75,765 $79,678 $111,195
202,539 198,645 213,121 278,546 257,851
358,841 342,173 404,825 501,562 483,346
176,066 175,924 175,771 175,510 151,772
- (24,871) (24,871) (24,871) (24,871)
125,779 106,531 126,893 212,968 254,814
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ltem 7. Management’'s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K that are not strictly historical in nature are
forward-looking statements. These statements include, but are not limited to, references fto
manufacturing activities; product sales; service and support revenues; research and development plans
and expenditures; the adequacy of capital resources; the effects of the continuing downturn in the
semiconductor industry; and competitive positioning. These statements include, but are not limited to,
statements containing the words “believes,” “anticipates,” “expects,” and words of similar import. These
statements are only predictions based on current information and expectations and involve a number of
risks and uncertainties. Actual events or results may differ materially from those projected in such
Statements due to various factors, including, but not limited to, those set forth under the caption “Risk
Factors” and elsewhere contained in this report. Cymer assumes no obligation to update any forward-
locking statements contained in this report.

The following discussion of the financial condition and results of operations of Cymer should be

read in conjunction with Cymer's consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere
in this annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001.

RESULTS OF CPERATIONS

The following table sets forth certain items in Cymer’s consolidated statements of income as a
percentage of total revenues for the periods indicated:

Years ended December 31,

1999 2000 2001
Revenues:
Product sales 99.8 % 99.7 % 99.1 %
Other 0.2 0.3 0.9
Total revenues 100.0 100.0 100.0
Cost and expenses:
Cost of product sales 64.9 51.0 56.2
Research and development 15.7 2.4 21.6
Sales and marketing 7.6 55 . 7.3
General and administrative 5.9 6.2 7.0
Amortization of goodwill and intangible assets - - 1.2
Purchased in-process research and development - - 1.9
Total costs and expenses 94.1 75.1 95.2
Operating income 5.9 249 4.8
Other expense - net (1.7) (0.3) (0.5)
Income before income tax provision
and minority interest 4.2 24.6 4.3
Income tax provision - 71 1.1
Minority interest (0.3) (0.1) (0.1)
Income before extraordinary item and
cumulative change in accounting principle 3.9 17.4 3.1
Extraordinary gain on debt extinguishment - - -
Cumulative change in accounting principle - - -
Net income 3.9 % 17.4 % 31 %
Gross margin on product sales 35.0 % 48.8 % 433 %
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YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 2001

Revenues. Cymer's revenues consist of product sales, which include sales of laser systems,
consumable and spare parts, upgrades, service, training, and software. Other revenues include revenue
from funded development activities performed for customers and government contracts. Revenue from
product sales is generally recognized at the time of shipment, uniess customer agreements contain
inspection, acceptance or other conditions, in which case revenue is recognized at the time such
conditions are satisfied. Funded development contracts are accounted for on the percentage-of-
completion method based on the reiationship of costs incurred to total estimated costs, after giving effect
to estimates of costs to complete the development project.

Product sales decreased 27% from $366.3 million in 2000 to $287.0 million in 2001, primarily
due to decreased sales of DUV photolithography laser systems, consumable and spare parts, and
services. This decrease in sales from year to year was due to the continuing downturn in the
semiconductor industry which caused both a lower demand for laser systems and a decreased demand
for consumable spare parts as a result of lower utilization of Cymer's installed base of lasers. A total of
494 systems were sold in 2000 at an ASP of $518,000 as compared to 335 systems sold in 2001 at an
ASP of $566,000. The higher ASP in 2001 helped to offset the lower quantity of lasers sold during the
year and was the result of Cymer’s continued introduction of new model lasers which command higher
prices. Revenues from funded development projects increased from $1.2 million in 2000 to $2.4 million
in 2001. This increase from period to period was primarily due to additional government contract
revenues generated through the acquisition of ACX, now known as the Cymer Cambridge division,
during the first quarter of 2001. During 2001, the majority of revenues generated by the Cymer
Cambridge division were from funded development contracts and accounted for $1.9 million of the total
$2.4 million funded development projects revenue for the year ended December 31, 2001.

Cymer's sales are generated primarily by shipments to customers in Japan, the Netherlands,
and the United States. Approximately 81% and 85% of Cymer’s sales in 2000 and 2001, respectively,
were derived from customers outside the United States. Cymer maintains a wholly-owned Japanese
subsidiary which sells to Cymer's Japanese customers. Revenues from Japanese customers,
generated primarily by this subsidiary, accounted for 42% and 41% of revenues in 2000 and 2001,
respectively. The activities of Cymer’s Japanese subsidiary are limited to sales and service of products
purchased by the subsidiary from the parent corporation. All costs of development and production of-
Cymer’'s products, including costs of shipment to Japan, are recorded on the books of the parent
company. Cymer anticipates that international sales will continue to account for a significant portion of
its net sales.

Cost of Product Sales. Cost of product sales includes direct material and labor, warranty
expenses, license fees, and manufacturing and service overhead. Prior to 2001, Cymer accounted for
foreign exchange gains and losses on foreign currency forward exchange contracts associated with
purchases of Cymer’'s products by its Japanese subsidiary for resale under firm third-party sales
commitments within cost of product sales. Under SFAS 133 for those derivative instruments that do not
qualify for hedge accounting, deferral of the gains or losses is not allowed and the gains and losses are
recorded in other income (expense). Cymer adopted SFAS 133 on January 1, 2001, but did not qualify
for hedge accounting until July 1, 2001. Accordingly, for contracts entered into prior to July 1, 2001,
Cymer is required to record changes in the fair value of its foreign currency forward exchange contracts
directly through earnings in other income (expense) in the period such changes occur. For contracts
entered into on or after July 1, 2001, Cymer defers effective changes in the fair value of its foreign
currency forward exchange contracts into other comprehensive income and subsequently reclassifies
the effective changes to cost of product sales in the same period that the related sale is made fo the
third party.

Cost of product sales decreased 19% from $187.6 million in 2000 to $151.3 million in 2001 due
primarily to the decrease in sales of product from period to period. The gross margin on these sales
decreased from 49% in 2000 to 43% in 2001. This decrease in gross margin was primarily the result of
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lower product sales absorbing both higher fixed manufacturing costs and worldwide field support
infrastructure costs offset by continued operational efficiencies.

For the year ended December 31, 2000, net gains or losses from foreign currency forward
exchange contracts were included in cost of product sales in the consolidated statements of income as
the related sales to the third party were recognized. For the year ended December 31, 2001, only those
contracts meeting the transition period requirements or qualifying for hedge accounting treatment under
SFAS 133 were included in cost of product sales in the consolidated statements of income. Cymer
recognized net gains in cost of sales on such contracts of $3.2 million and $2.3 million for the years
ended December 31, 2000 and 2001, respectively.

Research and Development. Research and development expenses include costs of internally-
funded and externally-funded projects as well as continuing research support expenses which primarily
include employee and material costs, depreciation of equipment and other engineering related costs.
Research and development expenses increased 29% from $45.4 million in 2000 to $58.4 million in 2001,
due primarily to increased development efforts associated with ArF laser development which includes
Cymer’s Nanolith 7000 laser and development efforts associated with F2 and EUV technology. Research
and development expenses associated with the Nanolith 7000 laser increased during the second half of
2001 as it moved into the production phase and initial units were shipped to customers during the third
quarter of 2001. Research and development expenses were also higher during 2001 due te continued
investment in next generation product development to keep pace with technological change in industry
requirements as well as the additional research and development expenses associated with the Cymer
Cambridge division and its ACX technology. As a percentage of total revenues, such expenses
increased from 12.4% to 21.6% due to both decreased revenues and increased spending from period to
period.

Sales ‘and Marketing. Sales and marketing expenses include the expenses of the sales,
marketing and customer support staffs and other marketing expenses. Sales and marketing expenses
decreased 2% from $20.1 million in 2000 to $19.6 million in 2001 due primarily to increased operational
efficiencies as well as heightened cost controls as a result of the centinuing downturn in the
semiconductor industry during 2001. As a percentage of total revenues, such expenses increased from
5.5% to 7.3% due to decreased revenues.

General and Administrative. General and administrative expenses consist primarily of
management and administrative personnel costs, professional services and administrative operating
costs. General and administrative expenses decreased 16% from $22.5 million in 2000 to $19.0 million
in 2001. This was due primarily to ongoing improvements in operational efficiencies and increased cost
controls for the period due to industry conditions. As a percentage of total revenues, such expenses
increased from 6.2% to 7.0% due to decreased revenues.

Purchased In-Process Research and Development. Purchased in-process research and
development expenses consist of costs associated with the acquisition of a company and its in-
process research and development projects. There were no such expenses incurred during the year
ended December 31, 2000 as compared to $5.1 miilion for the year ended December 31, 2001. These
expenses for the year ended December 31, 2001 are due to the acquisition of ACX and represent the
fair value of ACX development projects associated with the application of its technology to the
semiconductor market. As of the date of the ACX acquisition, this purchased in-process research and
development was expensed because the application of this technology to the semiconductor market was
at a stage of development that required further research and development before reaching technological
feasibility and commercial viability.

Other Income (Expense) - net. Net other income (expense) consists primarily of interest income
and expense and foreign currency exchange gains and losses associated with fluctuations in the value
of the Japanese yen against the United States dollar and gains and losses on foreign currency forward
exchange contracts. Net other expense totaled $1.2 million in 2000 as compared to $1.4 million in 2001.
The increase in net other expense from period to period is primarily due to lower cash and investment
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balances as well as lower yields on those investments. This was offset by gains associated with the
change in value of foreign currency forward exchange contracts for Cymer's contracts that did not qualify
for hedge accounting treatment per SFAS 133 in 2001. Foreign currency exchange losses totaled $1.4
million, interest income totaled $10.8 million, interest expense totaled $10.6 million, compared to an
exchange gain of $0.9 million, interest income of $8 3 million, interest expense of $10. 6 mllhon in 2001.

Cymer’s results of operations are subject to fluctuations in the value of the Japanese yen
against the United States dollar. Sales by Cymer to its Japanese subsidiary are denominated in dollars,
and sales by the subsidiary to customers in Japan are denominated in yen. Cymer's Japanese
subsidiary manages its exposure to such fluctuations by entering into foreign currency forward exchange
contracts to hedge its cash flow exposure to Cymer. Through June 30, 2001, gains or losses resulting
from the change in the value of contracts entered into prior to July 1, 2001 are recorded as other income
{expense) in the consolidated statements of income. These gains and losses were included in cost of
goods sold prior to the adoption of SFAS 133. Subsequent to June 30, 2001, gains or losses resulting
from contracts entered into after July 1, 2001 are initially recorded in other comprehensive income (loss)
(“OCI"). The net amount of unrealized effective gain or loss on the date the laser is received by Cymer's .
Japanese subsidiary is reclassified to cost of sale on the date that the laser is sold to the third party.
Gains and losses resulting from foreign currency translation are accumulated as a separate component
of consolidated stockholders’ equity.

Income Tax Provision. The tax provision of $26.2 million and $2.9 million for the years ended
December 31, 2000 and 2001, respectively, reflect an annual effective rate of 29% and 25%,
respectively. The annual effective tax rates for both periods are less than the U.S. statutory rate of 35%
primarily as a result of permanent book/tax differences and tax credits.

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 AND 2000

- Revenues. Product sales increased 66% from $220.1 million in 1999 to $366.3 million in 2000,
due primarily to improved market conditions and increased customer demand for lithography laser
systems and spares. These changes in conditions accounted for increases in unit sales of DUV
photolithography laser systems as well as increases in sales of spares, replacement parts, and services
due to the higher installed base at chipmakers and increased utilization rates. A total of 302 laser
systems were sold in 1999 compared to 494 laser systems sold in 2000 with ASPs of $483,000 versus
$518,000, respectively. These higher ASPs are a direct result of new model introductions which
command higher pricing and their adoption into the market place. Revenues generated from.
replacement parts increased from $66.6 million in 1999 to $101.8 million in 2000; and revenues from
service and service contracts increased from $2.9 miilion in 1999 to $7.4 million in 2000. Revenues from
funded development projects increased from $399,000 in 1999 to $1.2 million in 2000, primarily due to
the timing of the addition and completion of certain programs. .

Approximately 85% and 81% of Cymer's sales in 1999 and 2000, respectively, were derived
from customers outside the United States. Revenues from Japanese customers, generated primarily by
Cymer’s Japanese subsidiary, accounted for 37% and 42% of revenues in 1998 and 2000, respectively.

Cost of Product Sales. Cost of product sales rose 31% from $143.1 million in 1999 to $187.6
million in 2000 primarily in response to the increase in sales of product. The gross margin on these
sales increased from 35% in 1999 to 49% in 2000 primarily due to the increased product sales absorbing
relatively fixed manufacturing and worldwide support infrastructure costs and continued operational
efficiencies. Charges related to obsolete inventory remained consistent between 1999 and 2000.

For the years ended December 31, 1999 and 2000, net effective gains or losses from foreign-
currency forward exchange contracts were included in cost of product sales in the consolidated
statements of income in the same period as the related sales were recognized. Cymer recognized a net
toss on such contracts of $3.0 million in 1999 and a $3.2 million net gain in 2000.
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Research and Development. Research and development expenses increased 32% from $34.5
miilion in 1999 to $45.4 million in 2000, due primarily to continued product development efforts associated
with the ELS-6000 series laser systems and increased development efforts associated with ELS-6010
laser and ArF laser development. Research and development expenses were also higher in 2000 as
compared to 1999 due to increased staffing levels to support multiple new product development efforts
and ailocated costs associated with the move from the pre-existing research and devetlopment facility into
a new Cymer-owned facility, both located in San Diego, California. As a percentage of total revenues,
such expenses fell from 15.7% to 12.4% in the respective periods due to the increase in Cymer's
revenues.

Sales and Marketing. Sales and marketing expenses increased 20% from $16.7 million in 1999
to $20.1 million in 2000, due primarily to increased expenses associated with expanded operations in
product marketing, new product development, and sales administration as well as additional expenses
incurred to support the sales and marketing organizations internationally. As a percentage of total
revenues, such expenses decreased from 7.6% to 5.5% from period to period.

General and Administrative. :General and administrative expenses increased 73% from $13.1
million in 1999 to $22.6 million in 2000. This was due primarily to continued process improvements and
the resulting operational efficiencies from the implementation and ongoing support of a new enterprise
resource planning (“ERP”) system which was completed in 2000 and the required general and
administrative support activities. General and administrative expenses also increased in 2000 due to the
write-off of computer systems made obsolete by the new ERP system. Also included in general and
administrative expenses for 2000 were additional allowances for outstanding trade accounts receivable
and notes receivable totaling $1.4 million and costs associated with the endowment of two professorship
chairs for a total of $750,000. As a percentage of total revenues, such expenses increased from 5.9% to
6.2% in the respective periods.

Other Income (Expense)- net. Net other expenses decreased from $3.7 million in 1999 to $1.2
million in 2000. This decrease in net expenses was primarily due to an increase in interest income in
2000 associated with the investment of excess cash offset by foreign currency exchange losses. Foreign
currency exchange gain totaled $643,000, interest income totaled $7.3 million, and interest expense
totaled $11.7 million in 1999, compared to a foreign currency exchange loss of $1.4 million, interest
income of $10.8 million, and interest expense of $10.6 million in 2000.

Provision for Income Taxes. The tax rate of zero and 29% reported in 1999 and 2000,
respectively, reflect the tax benefits received from Cymer’s foreign sales corporation and U.S. tax credits.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESQURCES

Since its initial public offering and a second public offering, both in 1996, Cymer has funded its
operations primarily from the proceeds of convertible subordinated note offerings in August 1997 and
February 2002, bank borrowings, cash flow from operations and the proceeds from employee stock
option exercises.

In August 1997, Cymer issued $172.5 million in aggregate principal amount in a private
placement of notes. The notes were due on August 6, 2004, with interest payable semi-annually on
February 6 and August 6, at 3 1/2% per annum from August 6, 1997 through August 5, 2000 and
7 1/4% per annum from August 6, 2000 to maturity or earlier redemption. Since November 5, 1997, the
notes were convertible at the holder's option into shares of Cymer common stock at a conversion rate of
21.2766 shares per $1,000 principal amount. in June 2001, Cymer repurchased 23,500 of the notes
outstanding for a total purchase price-of $24.1 million, including $639,000 in accrued interest. In July
2001, Cymer repurchased an additional 1,500 of the notes outstanding for a total purchase price of $1.5
million, including $53,000 in accrued interest. As of December 31, 2001, $147.3 million under the notes
was outstanding.
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The outstanding 1997 notes were called for redemption on March 25, 2002. Prior to the March
25, 2002 redemption date, holders of $109.3 million of the outstanding principal amount converted their
notes into shares of Cymer's common stock. As a result of these conversions, 2,325,542 shares of
Cymer’s common stock were issued to the note holders and the remaining $38 million of the outstanding
principal amount of the notes was redeemed.

In February 2002, Cymer issued $250 million in aggregate principat amount in a second private
placement of notes. These notes are due on February 15, 2009 with interest payable semi-annually on
February 15 and August 15 of each year at 3 2% per annum. The notes are convertible into shares of
Cymer common stock at a conversion rate of 20 shares per $1,000 principal amount. Cymer used a
portion of the net proceeds from this private placement to redeem the notes issued in August 1997.

As of December 31, 2001, Cymer had approximately $111.2 million in cash and cash
equivalents, $83.0 million in short-term investments and $23.0 million in long-term investments. As of
December 31, 2001, Cymer had $257.9 million in working capital.

Net cash provided by operating activities was approximately $46.8 million, $62.8 million, and
$58.4 million in 1999, 2000, and 2001, respectively. Cash provided by operations in 1999 resulted from
increased depreciation, significant reductions in liabilities, and an increase in net income offset by
increases in accounts receivable. In 2000, cash provided by operating activities was primarily due to a
significant increase in net income. Increases in inventory, accounts receivable, and income taxes
payable resulted from increased revenues and bookings in 2000 and were offset by increases in
accounts payable and accrued and other liabilities during the year. Cash provided by operating activities
during 2001 primarily reflects a significant reduction in net income due to the downturn in the
semiconductor industry during 2001. As a result of this downturn and overall reduced business activities
during the period, there were significant decreases in accounts receivable and inventory during the
period. These were offset by decreases in accounts payable, accrued and other liabilities, and income
taxes payable during the same period.

Net cash used in investing activities was approximately $30.9 million, $64.2 miliion, and $6.2
miltion in 1999, 2000, and 2001, respectively. The cash used in investing activities of $30.9 million
during 1999 primarily reflects the purchase of various types of manufacturing and test equipment,
research and development tools, and the addition of tenant improvements for the field service and
manufacturing organizations,; all in support of business expansion during the year. During 1899, these
property acquisitions were offset by the timing of purchases and sales of investments during the same
period. In 2000, cash used in investing activities increased significantly from 1999 and totaled $64.2
million for the period. This increase in investing activities was primarily due to property acquisitions to
accommodate the increased business activities in 2000. Included in this $64.2 million were equipment
purchases, the construction of an additional facility at the San Diego, California location totaling $27.5
million, the purchase and the deployment of a new ERP system totaling $6.3 million, and a purchase of
an additional undeveloped parcel of land adjacent to the San Diego, California facility for $5.0 million. In
addition, $1.1 million in cash was used in 2000 to acquire the minority interest in Cymer's Taiwan
subsidiary. In 2001, the cash used in financing activities was primarily due to the timing of short term
and long term investments maturing and being reinvested during the period offset by a $6.0 million
payment made to acquire patents and the purchase of $20.4 million in capital equipment.

Net cash provided by financing activities was approximately $12.9 million and $2.2 million in
1938 and 2000, respectively, whereas cash used in financing activities was $14.5 million in 2001. In
1999, financing activities generated $12.9 million of net cash primarily from the exercise of employee
stock options totaling $8.5 million, as well as a $4.9 million increase in net borrowings under a revolving
loan and security agreement. In 2000, the $2.2 million net cash provided by financing activities was
primarily due to $12.7 million in emplioyee stock option exercises offset by a $9.7 million payment made
during the year on Cymer’s revolving loan. In 2001, the cash used in financing activities was attributablie
to the repurchase of $24.9 million in outstanding notes and a net payment on the revolving loan of $1.1
million during the period offset by the receipt of $11.8 million from the exercise of employee stock
options.
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Cymer requires substantial working capital to fund its business, particularly tc finance
inventories and accounts receivable and for capital expenditures. Cymer’s future capital requirements
will depend on many factors, including Cymer’s manufacturing activity, the timing and extent of spending
to support product development efforts, expansion of sales and marketing and field service and support,
the timing of introductions of new products and enhancements to existing products, and the market
acceptance of Cymer’s products. Cymer believes that it has sufficient working capital and available
banking arrangements to sustain operations and provide for the future expansion of its business for at
least the next 12 months.

The following summarizes Cymer's contractual obligations and other commitments as of
December 31, 2001, and the effect such obligations could have on its liquidity and cash flow in future
periods (in thousands):

Amount of Commitment Expiring by Period

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 Thereafter

Capital leases payable $ 75 $ 54 $ 45 $ - $ - $ -
Operating leases payable 4 445 3,604 3,513 3,505 3,477 3,499
Convertible subordinated notes (1) - - 147,335 - - -
Total Commitment $4,520 $3,658 $150,893 $3,505 $3.477 $9,499

(1) Subsequent to December 31, 2001, the convertible subordinated notes included in the above table were

- called for redemption. Prior to the March 25, 2002 redemption date, holders of $109.3 million of the

outstanding principal amount converted their notes to shares of Cymer's common stock. The remaining

$38 million of the outstanding principal amount of the notes was redeemed. On February 15, 2001,

Cymer closed the private placement of $250 million principal amount of 3 ¥2% Convertible Subordinated

Notes due February 15, 2009. A portion of the proceeds from this transaction were used to redeem the

outstanding 3 ¥2%/7%% Step-up Convertible Subordinated Notes. See Note 16 of the notes to the
consolidated financial statements included in this report.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

. Cymer’s discussion and analysis of its financial condition and results of operations are based
upon Cymer’'s consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of these
financial statements requires Cymer to make estimates and use judgment that may impact the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities. As a part of its on going internal processes, Cymer evaluates its estimates, including those
related to inventory reserves, warranty obligations, installation obligations, revenue recognition,
allowances for bad debt, impaired assets, intangible assets, income taxes, investments, and
contingencies and litigation. Cymer bases these estimates upon both historical information and other
assumptions that it believes valid and reasonable under the circumstances. These assumptions form
the basis for making judgments and determining the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
apparent from other sources. Actual results could vary from those estimates under different
assumptions and conditions.

Cymer believes that the following critical accounting policies affect its more significant
judgments and estimates used in the preparation of its consolidated financial statements.

Cymer maintains an inventory allowance to record inventory at net realizable value. The value
of this allowance is determined by taking into consideration certain assumptions related to market
conditions and future demands for its products which may result in excess or obsolete inventory. If
actual market conditions are more or less favorable than projected by management, adjustments to this
inventory allowance may be required to more accurately value inventory.

Cymer provides for the estimated cost of product warranties at the time the related revenue is
recognized. The amount of this provision is determined by using a financial mode! which takes inio
consideration actual historical expenses and potential risks associated with Cymer's different product
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models. This financial model is then used to calculate the future probable expenses related to warranty
and the required level of the warranty provision. Although Cymer engages in product improvement
programs and processes, its warranty obligation is affected by product failure rates and costs incurred to
correct those product failures at customer sites. Should actual product failure rates or estimated costs
to repair those product failures differ from Cymer's estimates, revisions to its estimated warranty
provision would be required.

Factors That May Affect Financial Condition and Future Results

Cymer participates in an industry that is very cyclical in nature and subject to rapid technological
changes and demands by its customers. The following are important risk factors that could affect
actual results and cause them to differ materially from the projected results in the forward-looking
statements in this report:

Cymer’s business depends on the semiconductor equipment industry, which is volatile;

e Cymer depends on the introduction of new products for its success, and is subject to risks
associated with rapid technological change;

e A significant percentage of Cymer’s revenue is derived from sales to a few large customers, and if
Cymer is not able to retain these customers, or they reschedule, reduce or cancel orders, Cymer's
revenues would be reduced and its financial results would suffer;

o A substantial percentage of Cymer’s revenue is derived from the sale of a limited number of primary
products;

o Cymer depends on a few key suppliers for purchasing components and subassemblies that are
included in its products; .

e« Cymer faces competition from two other companies that have more resources than Cymer and
Cymer may face competition from additional competitors who enter the market;

o Cymer depends on key personnel, especially management and technical personnel, who may be
difficult to attract and retain in an expanding market; _

e Failure to maintain effectively Cymer’s direct field service and support organization could have a
material adverse effect on its business;

o Cymer's ability to compete could be jeopardized if it is unable to protect its intellectual property
rights. These types of claims could seriously harm Cymer’s business or require Cymer to incur
significant costs;

e The parties to whom Cymer provides research and development services may dispute the
ownership of the intellectual property that Cymer develops performing these services;

e Inthe future, Cymer may be subject to patent litigation to enforce patents issued to Cymer and have
to defend itself against claimed infringement by Cymer’'s competitors or any third party;

o Trademark infringement claims against Cymer’s registered and unregistered trademarks would be
expensive and Cymer may have to stop using such trademarks and pay damages;

e Economic, political, regulatory and other events in geographic areas where Cymer has significant
sales or operations could interfere with Cymer’s business;

o Cymer is exposed to risks related to the fluctuations in the currency exchange rates for the
Japanese Yen;

e Semiconductor device manufacturers’ prolonged use of Cymer’s product in high volume productions
may not produce the results they desire, and as a result, Cymer’s reputation could be damaged in
the semiconductor industry as well as with Cymer’s customers who supply photolithography tools to
the semiconductor manufacturers;

o Cymer has in the past and may in the future acquire businesses that will involve numerous risks.
Cymer may not be able to address these risks successfully without substantial expense, delay or
other operational and financial problems;

o Cymer's acquisition of ACX may not result in the benefits that it anticipated;

o Cymer must develop and manufacture enhancements to its existing products and introduce new
products in order to grow its business. Cymer may not effectively manage its growth and integrate
these new enhancements and products, which could materially harm its business;

o Cymer’s products are subject to potential product liability claims if personal injury or death result; and
The price of Cymer's common stock has fluctuated and may continue to fluctuate widely.
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At December 31, 2000 and 2001, Cymer did not have any relationships with unconsolidated
entities or financial partnerships, such as entities often referred to as structured finance or special
purpose entities, which would have been established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet
arrangements or other contractually narrow or limited purposes. In addition, Cymer did not engage in
trading activities involving non-exchange traded contracts. As a result, Cymer is not exposed to any
financing, liquidity, market or credit risk that could arise if it had engaged in such relationships. Cymer
does not have relationships and transactions with persons or entities that derive benefits from their non-
independent relationship with the Company or its related parties except as disclosed herein.

Recent Accounting Prenouncements

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 141 (“SFAS 141"), Business Combinations, and Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 142 (“SFAS 142"), Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. SFAS 141 reguires
that the purchase method of accounting be used for all business combinations initiated after June 30,
2001 as well as all purchase method business combinations completed after June 30, 2001. SFAS 141
also specifies criteria that intangible assets acquired in a purchase method business combination must
satisfy to be recognized and reported apart from goodwill, noting that any purchase price aliocable to an
assembled workforce may not be accounted for separately. SFAS 142 requires that goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives no longer be amortized, but instead tested for impairment at
least annually in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 142. SFAS 142 also requires that intangible
assets with definite useful lives be amortized over their respective estimated useful lives to their
estimated residual values, and reviewed for impairment in accordance with Statement of Accounting
Standards No. 121 (“SFAS 121"), Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-
Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of.

Cymer adopted the provisions of SFAS 141 on July 1, 2001 and is required to adopt the
provisions of SFAS 142 effective January 1, 2002. Furthermore, goodwill and intangible assets
determined to have an indefinite useful life that is acquired in a purchase business combination
completed after June 30, 2001 will not be amortized, but will continue to be evaluated for impairment.
Goodwill and intangible assets acquired in business combinations completed before July 1, 2001 will
continue to be amortized in accordance with accounting treatment in effect prior to the adoption of SFAS
142 on January 1, 2002.

SFAS 141 will require upon adoption of SFAS 142 that Cymer evaluate its existing intangible
assets and goodwill that were acquired in prior purchase business combinations, and make any
necessary reclassifications in order to conform with the new criteria in SFAS 141 for recognition apart
from goodwill. Upon adoption of SFAS 142, Cymer will be required to reassess the useful lives and
residual values of all intangible assets acquired in purchase business combinations, and make any
necessary amortization period adjustments by the end of the first interim period after adoption. in
addition, to the extent an intangible asset is identified as having an indefinite useful life, Cymer will be
required to test the intangible asset for impairment in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 142 within
the first interim period. Any impairment loss will be measured as of the date of adoption and recognized
as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle in the first interim period.

In connection with the transitional goodwill impairment evaluation, SFAS 142 will require Cymer
to perform an assessment of whether there is an indication that goodwill is impaired as of the date of
adoption. To accomplish this Cymer must identify its reporting units and determine the carrying value of
each reporting unit by assigning assets and liabilities, including the existing goodwill and intangible
assets, to those reporting units as of the date of adoption. Cymer will then determine the fair value of
each reporting unit and compare it to the reporting unit’s carrying value. To the exient a reporting unit's
carrying value exceeds its fair value, an indication exists that the reporting unit's goodwill may be
impaired and Cymer must perform the second step of the transitional impairment test. In the second
step, Cymer must compare the implied fair value of the reporting unit's goodwill, determined by
allocating the reporting unit’s fair value to all of it assets (recognized and unrecognized) and fiabilities in
a manner similar to a purchase price ailocation to its carrying amount, both of which would be measured
as of the date of adoption. Any transitional impairment loss will be recognized as a cumulative effect of
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change in accounting principle. Cymer is currently working on the first step of the goodwill impairment
evaluation under SFAS 142 and expects to have it completed during the second quarter of 2002.

As of the date of adoption and prior to any reciassification adjustments, Cymer expects to have
unamortized goodwill in the amount of $9.8 million and unamortized identifiable intangible assets in the
amount of $1.1 million, both of which will be subject to the transition provisions of SFAS 141 and 142.
Amortization expense related to goodwill was $108,000 and $2.8 million for the years ended December
31, 2000 and 2001, respectively. Amortization expense related to identifiable intangible assets was
$313,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001. There was no such amortization expense for
intangible assets for the year ended December 31, 2000. Cymer is still in the early stages of the
evaluation process for SFAS 142 but at this time there has been no identified impairment of these
intangible assets. '

In August 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143 ("SFAS
143"), Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations, which addresses financial accounting and reporting
for obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and for the associated asset
retirement costs. SFAS 143 applies to tangible long-lived assets that have a legal obligation associated
with their retirement that results from the acquisition, construction or development or normal use of the
asset. SFAS 143 requires that the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation be recognized
in the period in which it is incurred if a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made. The fair value of
the liability is added to the carrying amount of the associated asset and this additional carrying amount is
depreciated over the remaining life of the asset. The liability is accreted at the end of each period
through charges to operating expense. Cymer is required to adopt the provisions of SFAS 143 during
the quarter ending March 31, 2003. It is not anticipated that the financial impact of this statement will
have a material effect on Cymer’s consolidated financial statements.

In October 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144
("SFAS 144™), Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, which addresses
financial accounting and reparting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets. While SFAS 144
supersedes SFAS 121, it retains many of the fundamental provisions of SFAS 121, including the
recognition and measurement of the impairment .of long-lived assets to be held and used, and the
measurement of long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale. SFAS 144 also supersedes the accounting
and reporting provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 30, "Reporting the Results of
Operations—Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual
and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions” (“Opinion No. 30"), for the disposal of a segment of
a business. However, it retains the requirement in Opinion No. 30 to report separately discontinued
operations and extends that reporting to a component of an entity that either has been disposed of (by
sale, abandonment, or in a distribution to owners) or is classified as held for sale. SFAS 144 is effective
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001. It is not anticipated that the financial impact of this
statement will have a material effect on Cymer's consolidated financial statements.
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RISK FACTORS

In this section, references to “we”, “us” or “our” are references to Cymer. Our business faces
significant risks. The risks described below may not be the only risks we face. Additional risks that we do
not yet know of or that we currently think are immaterial may also impair our business operations. If any
" of the events or circumstances described in the following risks actually occur, our business, financial
condition or results of operations could suffer, and the trading price of our common stock could decline.

Our revenues and operating results may fluctuate due to a variety of factors.

Our revenues and operating results from quarter-to-quarter may fluctuate significantly due to
many factors. These factors include:

o demand for semiconductors in general and, in particular, for leading edge devices with
smaller circuit geometries;

o cyclicality in the market for semiconductor manufacturing equipment;

rates at which semiconductor device manufacturers take delivery of photolithography tools
from our customers; '

rates at which our customers take delivery of light sources from us;

timing and size of orders from our small base of customers;

mix of laser models, replacement parts and service revenues in our total revenues;
utilization rates of lasers and sales for replacement parts and services,; and

foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations, principally with respect to the Japanese yen (in
which sales by our Japanese subsidiary are denominated).

(5]

o O O © o

Also, we have historically derived a large portion of our quarterly and annual revenues from
selling a small number of laser systems. Because we sell a small number of products, the precise time
that we recognize revenue from an order may have a significant impact on our total revenue for a
particular period. Qur customers may cancel or reschedule orders with little or no penalty. Orders
expected in one quarter could shift to another period due to changes in the anticipated timing of
customers’ purchase decisions or rescheduled delivery dates requested by our customers. Our
operating results for a particular quarter or year may be adversely affected if our customers cance! or
reschedule orders, or if we cannot fill orders in time due to unexpected delays in manufacturing, testing,
shipping, and product acceptance.

We manage our expense levels based, in large part, on expected future revenues. As a resutt,
our expenses are reiatively fixed for the short term, and if our actual revenue decreases below the level
we expect, our operating results will be adversely affected.

Qur business depends on the semiconductor equipment industry, which is volatile.

We derive a substantial percentage of our revenues from photolithography tool manufacturers
(our customers). Our customers depend in turn on the demand for their photolithography tool products
from their customers, the semiconductor device manufacturers. The capital equipment expenditures of
semiconductor manufacturers depend on the current and anticipated market demand for
semiconductors and products using semiconductors.

The semiconductor industry is cyclical in nature and historically has experienced periodic
downturns and is currently in a significant downtuen. This current downturn has had a severe effect on
the demand for semiconductor manufacturing equipment, including photolithography tools that our
customers produce. We have sized our operations in recent years in response {o rapid changes in
demand. Throughout 2001, semiconductor device manufacturers reduced their capital spending as
demand for semiconductors decreased. Similarly, during 2001 we experienced reductions in spare parts
purchases as semiconductor production levels dropped. If overall market conditions continue to
deteriorate in the near term, our current operating levels may negatively impact our profitability. We
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believe that downturns in the semiconductor manufacturing industry will periodically occur, and result in
periodic decreases in demand for all semiconductor manufacturing equipment, including
photolithography tools our customers manufacture. As a result, fluctuating levels of investment by
semiconductor device manufacturers and pricing volatility will continue to materially affect our aggregate
bookings, revenues and operating results. Also, even during periods of reduced revenues we believe we
must continue to invest in research and development and to maintain extensive ongoing worldwide
customer service and support capabilities to remain competitive, which may temporarily harm our
financial results. Accordingly, these downturns are likely to continue to adversely affect our business,
financial condition and operating resuits and our operating results may fall below the expectations of
public market analysts or investors in some future quarter or quarters. Such failure to meet operating
result expectations would materially adversely affect the price of our common stock.

Our customers try to manage their inventories and production requirements to appropriate
levels that best reflect their expected sales to semiconductor device manufacturers. Market conditions in
the industry and production efficiency of the photolithography tool manufacturers can cause our
customers to expand or reduce their orders for new laser systems as they try to manage their inventories
and production requirements to these levels. We are working with our customers to better understand
these issues. However, we cannot guarantee that we will be successful in understanding our customers’
inventory management and production requirements or that our customers will not build up an excess
inventory of laser products. If our customers retain an excess inventory of laser products, our revenue
could be reduced in future periods as the excess inventory is utilized, which would adversely affect our
operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

We depend on the introduction of new products for our success, and we are subject to risks
associated with rapid technological change.

Rapid technological changes in semiconductor manufacturing processes subject us to increased
pressure to develop technological advances enabling such processes. We believe that our future
success depends in part upon our ability to develop, manufacture and timely introduce new laser
products with improved capabilities and to continue to enhance our existing laser systems and process
capabilities. Due to the risks inherent in transitioning to new products, we must forecast accurately
demand for new products while managing the transition from older products.

We believe that semiconductor device manufacturers are currently developing a capability to
produce devices that are measured at .13 micron or less, and these efforts are driving the current
demand for our laser systems for DUV photolithography systems. After semiconductor device
manufacturers have this capability, their demand for our laser products will depend on whether they want
to expand their capacity to manufacture these devices. This will in turn depend on whether their sales
forecasts and projected manufacturing process yields justify the necessary investments.

Future technologies, such as EUV and scalpel processes, may render our excimer laser
products obsolete. We must manage product transitions, as introduction of new products could
adversely affect our sales of existing products. If new products are not introduced on time, or have
reliability or quality problems, our performance may be impacted by reduced orders, higher
manufacturing costs, delays in acceptance of and payment for new products, and additional service and
warranty expenses. We may not be able to develop and introduce new products or enhancements to our
existing products and processes in a timely or cost effective manner that satisfies customer needs or
achieves market acceptance. Failure to develop and introduce these new products and enhancements
could materially adversely affect our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

We expect to face significant competition from multiple current and future competitors. We
believe that other companies are developing systems and products that are competitive to ours and are
planning to introduce new products to this market, which may affect our ability to sell our new products.
Furthermore, new products represent significant investments of our resources and their success, or lack
thereof, could have a material effect on our financial results.
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A significant percentage of our revenue is derived from sales to a few large customers, and if we
are not able to retain these customers, or they reschedule, reduce or cancel orders, our revenues
would be reduced and our financial results would suffer.

Three large firms, ASM Lithography, Nikon and Canon dominate the photolithography tool
business. Collectively, these three firms accounted for the following percentage of our total revenue
during the periods indicated:

Year ended December 31,

1999 2000 2001
ASM Lithography .....coooiviii 38% 33% 32%
NEKOM e e e e e nn 24 28 29
CaNON s 17 19 15
Ol o e 79% 80% 76%

We expect that sales of our laser products to these three customers will continue to account for
a substantial majority of our revenue in the foreseeable future. None of our customers are obligated to
purchase a minimum number of our products. The loss of any significant business from or production
problems for any one of these three customers wili have a material adverse effect on our business and
financial condition. Sales to these customers may be affected by many factors, some of which are
beyond our control. These factors include:

o achange in a customer’s competitive position in its industry;

o a decision to purchase laser or light sources from other suppliers; and
changes in economic conditions in the semiconductor or the photolithography tool
industries.

A substantial percentage of our revenue is derived from the sale of a limited number of primary
products.

Our only product line is excimer lasers, which include krypton fluoride, argon fluoride and
fluorine laser systems, and we expect these primary products to continue to account for a large
percentage of our revenues in the near term. Continued market acceptance of our primary products is,
therefore, critical to our future success. The primary market for excimer laser light sources is in the use
of deep ultraviolet photolithography equipment for manufacturing deep-submicron semiconductor
devices using smaller circuit geometries. The demand for our products depends in part on the rate at
which semiconductor device manufacturers further adopt excimer lasers as the chosen light source for
their photolithography tools. Semiconductor manufacturers may choose not to adopt excimer lasers for a
variety of reasons, including:

o  instability of photoresists used in advanced DUV photolithography; and
o potential shortages of specialized materials used in DUV optics.

We cannot guarantee that these factors can or will be overcome or that the demand for our
excimer laser products will not be materially reduced. The demand for our laser products, and therefore
our operating results, financial condition and cash flows, could be adversely affected by a number of
factors, including:

e a decline in demand for our customers’ DUV photolithography tools;

o a failure to achieve continued market acceptance of our products;

o an improved version of products being offered by a competitor in the market we participate
in;

o technological change that we are unable to address with our products; and

o a failure to release new enhanced versions of our products on a timely basis.
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We must effectively manage changes in our business.

In order to respond to the business cycles of the semiconductor industry, in the past few years
we have sharply expanded and contracted the scope of our operations and the number of employees in
many of our departments. As the semiconductor industry grows and contracts we will need to:

closely manage our domestic and internationai operations;

improve our accounting and other internal management systems;

improve our quality control, order fulfillment, field service and customer support capabilities;
quickly adapt to changing sales and marketing channels;

effectively manage our inventory levels; and

attract, train, retain and manage key technical personnel;

o o O O o0 o

If we fail to effectively manage changes in our business, our operating results, financial condition
and cash flows, would be adversely affected.

We depend on a few key suppliers for purchasing components and subassemblies that are
included in our products. '

We purchase some of the components and subassemblies included in our laser products from a
single supplier or a limited group of suppliers. For some of these components and subassemblies,
including specific optical components used in our lasers, there are no alternative sources of supply. In
addition, we outsource the manufacture of various subassemblies more often than in the past. Further,
some of our suppliers have specialized in supplying equipment or manufacturing services to
semiconductor equipment manufacturers and therefore have been adversely affected by the current
industry downturn. If the current downturn continues for an extended period of time, these suppliers may
not be able to continue to meet our requirements or respond quickly enough when the recovery begins.
Due to the nature of our product development requirements, these key suppliers must rapidly advance
their own technologies and production capabilities in order to support the introduction schedule of our
new products. These suppliers may not be able to provide new modules and subassemblies when they
are needed to satisfy our product schedule requirements. If we cannot purchase enough of these
materials, components or subassemblies, or if these items do not meet our quality standards, there
could be delays or reductions in our product shipments, which would have a material adverse effect on
our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

We face competition from two companies that have more resources than us and may face
competition from additional competitors who enter the market.

We are currently aware of two significant competitors that sell laser sysiems for DUV
photolithography applications. These competitors are:

o  Gigaphoton, a joint venture between two large companies, Komatsu and Ushio, which is
headquartered in Japan; and
o Lambda-Physik, a company headquartered in Germany.

Both of these companies:

o have parent companies larger than us, and
o have access to greater financial, technical and other resources than we do.

We believe that Gigaphoton and Lambda-Physik are aggressively trying fo gain a larger market
share in the excimer laser industry. We believe that our customers have purchased products from these
two competitors and that our customers have approved these competitors’ lasers for use with their
products. We believe that Gigaphoton, in particular, has been approved by chipmakers in Japan and
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elsewhere for producing excimer lasers. Also, we believe that Lambda-Physik has been approved by
chipmakers in the U.S. and Europe for producing excimer laser products.

The market for excimer lasers is still small and immature. Larger competitors with substantially
greater resources, such as other manufacturers of industrial light sources for advanced lithography, may
attempt to sell competitive products to our customers. Potential competitors may also be attracted to our
growing installed base of laser light sources and may attempt to supply consumable products and
refurbished parts to that installed base. If any existing or fulure competitors gain market acceptance we
could lose market share and our growth could slow or decline, which could have a material adverse
effect on our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

We depend on key personnel, especially management and technical personnel, who may be
difficult to attract and retain in an expanding market.

We are highly dependent on the services of many key employees in various areas, including:

engineering;

research and development;
sales and marketing; and
manufacturing.
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In particular, there are a limited number of experts in excimer laser technology, and we require
highly-skilled hardware and software engineers. Competition for qualified personnel is intense and we
cannot guarantee that we will be able to continue to attract and retain qualified personnel as needed. We
have in the past experienced, and continue to experience, difficulty in hiring personnel, including experts
in excimer laser technology. We do not have employment agreements with most of our employees. We
believe that our future growth and operating results will depend on:

e the continued services of our engineering, research and develepment, sales and marketing,
and manufacturing and service personnel;

e our ability to attract, train and retain highly-skilled personnel in each of these areas, and
the ability of our personnel and key employees to continue to expand, train and manage our
employee base.

If we are unable to hire, train and retain key personnel as required, our operating results,
financial condition and cash flows could be adversely affected.

Failure to maintain effectively our direct field service and support organization could have a
material adverse effect on our business.

We believe it is critical for us to provide quick and responsive service directly to the
semiconductor device manufacturers throughout the world who use our laser products in their
photolithography systems, and that it is essential to maintain our own personnel or trained third party
resources to provide these services. Accordingly, we have an ongoing effort to develop our direct
support system with locations in the United States, Japan, Europe, Korea, Singapore, Taiwan and
Southeast Asia. This requires us to do the following:

o recruit and train qualified field service personnel;
o identify qualified independent firms; and

» maintain effective and highly trained organizations that can provide service to our customers
in various countries.

We have experienced difficulties in training field service personnel. We might not be able to
attract and train qualified personne! to maintain our director support operations successfully. Further, we
may incur significant costs in providing these support services. Failure to implement our direct support
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operation effectively could have a material adverse effect on our operating results, financial condition
and cash flows.

Our ability to compete could be jeopardized if we are unable to protect our inteliectual property
rights. These types of claims could seriously harm our business or require us to incur significant
costs.

We believe our success and ability to compete depend in large part upon protecting our
proprietary technology. We rely on a combination of patent, trade secret, copyright and trademark laws,
non-disclosure and other contractual agreements and technical measures to protect our proprietary
rights.

As of December 31, 2001, we had registered 136 United States patents covering ceriain
aspects of technology related to excimer lasers and piezo techniques. These patenis will expire at
various times during the period from January 2008 to February 2020. As of December 31, 2001, we also
had applied for 98 additional patents in the United States. As of December 31, 2001, we owned 110
foreign patents and had filed 281 patent applications pending in various foreign countries.

Our pending patent applications and any future applications might not be approved. Our patents
might not provide us with a competitive advantage and may be challenged by third parties. In addition,
third parties’ patents might have an adverse effect on our ability to do business. As a result of cost
constraints, we did not begin filing in Japan and other countries our patents for inventions covered by
United States patents and patent applications until 1993. As a result we might have lost the right to seek
foreign patent protection for some of our early inventions.” Additionally, laws of some foreign countries in
which our products are or may be developed, manufactured or sold, including various countries in Asia,
may not protect our products or intellectual property rights to the same extent as do the laws of the
United States. Thus, the possibility of piracy of our technology and products are more likely in these
countries. Further, third parties might independently develop similar products, duplicate our products or,
design around patents that are granted to us.

Other companies or persons may have filed or may file in the future patent applications that are
similar or identical to ours. We may have to participate in interference proceedings declared by the
United States Patent and Trademark Office in order for the patent office to determine the priority of
inventions. The patent office may determine that these third party patent applications have priority over
our patent applications. These interference proceedings could result in substantial cost to us.

We also rely on the following to protect our confidential information and our other intellectual
property:

trade secret protection,

employee nondisclosure agreements,
third-party nondisclosure agreements, and
other intellectual property protection methods.
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However, we may not be successful in protecting our confidential information and intellectual
property, particularly our trade secrets, because third parties may:

o independently develop substantially the same proprietary information and techniques,
o gain access to our trade secrets, or
o disclose our technology.

The parties to whom we provide research and development services may dispute the cwnership
of the intellectual property that we develop performing these services.

In the past, revenues from research and development arrangements with third parties have
been used to pay for a portion of our own research and development expenses. We receive these
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revenues from photolithography tool manufacturers and from SEMATECH in connection with our
designing and developing specific products. Currently, revenues from SEMATECH, photolithography tool
manufacturers and semiconductor manufacturers are used to fund a small portion of our development
expenses. In providing these research and development services to these manufacturers and
SEMATECH, we ftry to make clear who owns the intellectual property that results from the research and
development services we perform. However, disputes over the ownership or rights to use or market
these intellectual property may arise between us and the photolithography tool manufacturers and
SEMATECH. Any dispute over ownership of the intellectual property we develop could restrict our ability
to market our products and have a material adverse effect on our business.

In the future, we may be subject to patent litigation to enforce patents issued to us and defend
ourselves against claimed infringement by our competitors or any other third party.

Third parties have notified us in the past, and may notify us in the future, that we are infringing
their intellectual property rights. Also, we have notified third parties in the past, and may notify them in
the future, that they may be infringing our intellectual property rights.

Specifically, Komatsu has notified us that we may be infringing some of its Japanese patents.
During our discussions with Komatsu, they also asserted that we or our Japanese manufacturing
partner, Seiko, may be infringing on some of Komatsu’'s United States patents and a number of its
additional Japanese patents. Komatsu has also notified one of our customers, Nikon, of its belief that our
lasers infringe several of Komatsu’s Japanese and U.S. patents. As a result, we started proceedings in
the Japanese Patent Office to oppose certain patents and patent applications of Komatsu. The
Japanese Patent Office has dismissed some of our opposition claims. Thus, litigation may result in
connection with Komatsu's Japanese patents or U.S. patents. Also, Komatsu might claim that we
infringe other or additional patents. Komatsu notified Seiko, our manufacturing pariner, that it intends to
enforce its rights against Seiko with respect to its Japanese patents if Seiko continues to engage in
manufacturing activities for us. In connection with our manufacturing agreement with Seiko, we agree to
pay Seiko under certain conditions for damages associated with these types of claims. Seiko may not
prevail in any litigation against Komatsu, and therefore, we may be required to pay Seiko for such
damages.

We have notified our competitors and others of our United States patent portfolio. Specifically,
we have notified Komatsu that it may be infringing on some of our U.S. patents. Currently, we are
discussing with Komatsu our claims against each other. These discussions may not be successful and
litigation could result. Komatsu challenged one of our U.S. patents in the United States Patent Office.
Also, Komatsu transferred its lithography laser business to one of our competitors, Gigaphoton. We aiso
have had discussions with Lambda-Physik, another competitor, regarding allegations by each party
against the other for possible patent infringement. Any of these discussions with our competitors may not
be successful and litigation could result.

In the future, patent litigation may be necessary to enforce patents issued to us and defend us
against claimed infringement by our competitors or any other third party. Any such litigation could result
in substantial cost and diversion of effort by us, which would have an adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and operating results. Furthermore, our customers and the end users of our products
might assert other claims for indemnification that arise from infringement claims against them. If these
assertions are successful, our business, financial condition and operating results may be materially
effected. Instead of litigation, we may seek a license from third parties to use their intellectual property.
However, we may not be able to obtain a license on reasonable terms. In the alternative, we may design
around the third party’s intellectual property right or we may challenge these claims in legal proceedings.
Any adverse determination in a legal proceeding could result in the following, any of which could have a
substantial adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results:

loss of our proprietary rights,

exposure to significant liabilities by other third parties,

requirement that we get a license from third parties on terms that are not favorable, or
restriction from manufacturing or selling our products.
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Any of these actions could be costly and would divert the efforts and attention of Cymer’s
management and technical personnel, which would materially adversely affect Cymer's business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Trademark infringement claims against our registered and unregistered trademarks would be
expensive and we may have to stop using such trademarks and pay damages.

We registered the trademark “CYMER” in the United States and in some other countries. We
are also trying to register additional trademarks in the United States in other countries, including the
trademark “Insist on Cymer.” We use these trademarks and many other marks in our advertisements
and other business materials, which are distributed throughout the world. We may be subject to
trademark infringement actions for using these marks and other marks on a worldwide basis and this
would be very expensive to defend. If a frademark infringement action was successful, we would have to
stop using the mark and possibly pay damages.

If Seiko discontinues producing our laser in Japan due to patent infringement claims made by
Komatsu, our ability to meet the demand for cur preduct in Japan could be materially adversely
effected.

We have approved Seiko as a qualified manufacturer of our excimer lasers. Komatsu has told
Seiko that certain aspects of our lasers may infringe on Komatsu’s Japanese patents. Further, Komatsu
advised Seiko that it intends to enforce its rights under such Japanese patents against Seiko if Seiko
continues to manufacture excimer laser products for us. In connection with our manufacturing
agreement with Seiko, we have agreed to indemnify Seiko against any such claims under certain
circumstances. To date, Komatsu has not initiated any such legal action. If Seiko stops manufacturing
our laser products in Japan because of Komatsu’s claims, our ability to manufacturer tasers that are in
demand in such area could be materially and adversely effected.

Economic, political, regulatory and other events in geographic areas where we have significant
sales or operations could interfere with our business.

A large portion of our total revenues are derived from foreign customers located outside of the
United States, particularly in Asian countries. Our foreign customers accounted for 81% or more of our
total revenue in each of the last three fiscal years.

Because a significant majority of our principal customers are located in Asian countries, we
expect our international sales to continue to account for a very large portion of our total revenues. In
order to support our foreign customers, we must:

o maintain subsidiaries located in Japan, Korea, Taiwan, Singapore and the Netherlands,
o further develop our field service and support operations throughout the world, and
o continue to work with Seiko as a contract manufacturer of our laser products in Japan.

We may not be able to manage our operations to address and support our foreign customers
effectively. Further, our investments in these types of activities may not make us competitive in the
international market or we may not be able to meet the service and support levels required by our
foreign customers.

Additionally, we are subject to the risks inherent in doing business internationally, inciuding:

unexpected changes in regulatory requirements,

fluctuations in exchange rates and currency controls,

political and economic conditions and instability,

imposition of trade barriers and restrictions, including changes in tariff and freight rates,
foreign customs and duties, :

difficulty in coordinating our management and operations in several different countries,
difficulties in staffing and managing foreign subsidiary and branch operations,

limited intellectual property protection in some countries,
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potentially adverse tax consequences in some countries,

the possibility of accounts receivable collection difficulties,

in the case of Asia, the risk of business interruption and damage from earthquakes,
the effect of acts of terrorism and war, and

the burdens of complying with a variety of foreign laws.
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Many of our major customers and many of the semiconductor device manufacturers who use
our laser products in their photolithography systems are located in Asia. Economic problems and
currency fluctuations affecting these regions in Asia could create a larger risk for us. Further, even
though it has not been difficult for us to comply with United States export controls, these export rules
could change in the future and make it more difficult or impossible for us to export our products to many
countries. Any of these vulnerabilities could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

We are dependent on air transport to conduct our business and disruption of domestic and
international air transport systems could adversely effect our business.

We depend on regular and reliable air transportation on a worldwide basis for many of our
routine business functions. If civil aviation in the United States or abroad is disrupted by terrorist
activities or security responses to the threat of terrorism or for any other reason, our business could be
adversely affected in the following ways:

o supplies of raw materials and components for the manufacture of our products or our
customers’ products may be disrupted;
we may not be able to deliver our products to our customers in a timely manner,

e we may not be able to provide timely support of installed lasers for semiconductor device
manufacturers; and

e our sales and marketing efforts may be disrupted.

We are exposed to risks related to the fluctuations in the currency exchange rates for the
Japanese Yen.

If we sell products to our Japanese subsidiary, the sale is denominated in United States dollars.
If our Japanese subsidiary sells directly to customers in Japan, the sale is denominated in Japanese
Yen. Thus, our results of operations may fluctuate based on the changing value of the Japanese Yen to
the U.S. dollar. Our Japanese subsidiary manages its exposure to these fluctuations through foreign
currency forward exchange contracts to hedge its purchase commitments. We will continue to monitor
our exposure to these currency fluctuations, and, when appropriate, use hedging transactions to
minimize the effect of these currency fluctuations. However, exchange rate fluctuations may still have a
material adverse effect on our operating results. In the future, we may need to sell our products in other
foreign currencies other than the Japanese Yen and the management of more currency fluctuations will
be more difficult and expose us to greater risks in this area.

We are subject to many standards and regulations of foreign governments and, even though we
intend to comply, we may not always be in compliance with these rules, or we may be unable to
design or redesign our products to comply with these rules.

Many foreign countries’ government standards and regulations apply to our products. These
standards and regulations are always being amended. Although we intend to meet all foreign standards
and regulations, our products may not comply with these foreign government standards and regulations
or the amendments made to them. Further, it might not be cost effective for us to redesign our products
to comply with these foreign government standards and regulations. Our inability to design or redesign
products to comply with foreign standards would result in noncompliance with these standards and
regulations, and therefore could have a material adverse effect on our business.
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Semiconductor device manufacturers’ prolonged use of our preduct in high volume productions
may not produce the results they desire, and as a result, our reputation could be damaged in the
semiconductor industry as well as our customers who supply photslithography tools to the
semiconductor manufacturers.

Over time, our laser products may not meet semiconductor device manufacturers’ production
specifications or operating cost requirements after the laser is used for a long period in high volume
production. If any semiconductor device manufacturer cannot successfully achieve or sustain their
volume production using our lasers, our reputation could be damaged with the semiconductor device
manufacturers and our customers who are the limited number of photolithography tool manufacturers.
This would have a material adverse effect on our business.

We have in the past and may in the future acquire business that will involve numerous risks. We
may not be able to address these risks successfully without substantial expense, delay or other
operaticnal and financial problems.

The risks involved with acquiring a new company include the following:

o diversion of management'’s attention and resources to integrate the new company, failure to
retain key personnel,

amortization of acquired definite lived intangible assets and deferred compensation,

client dissatisfaction or performance problems with the acquired company,

the cost associated with acquisitions and the integration of acquired operations,

ability of the acquired companies to meet their financial projections, and

assumption of unknown liabilities, or other unanticipated events or circumstances.
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Any of these risks could materially harm our business, financial condition and operating results.
Further, any business that we acquire may not achieve anticipated revenues or operating results.

Cur acquisition of ACX may not resuit in the benefits we anticipate.

In February 2001, we completed our purchase of ACX (now referred to as Cymer Cambridge).
Cymer Cambridge’s technoiogy addresses stability and motion control chalienges that we believe will be
important to the future of the photolithography tool industry. We purchased Cymer Cambridge with the
expectation that the purchase would result in benefits to us including:

o expanding our product offerings into the field of adaptive precision motion diagnostics and
control,

o new product offerings and enhancements that use the ACX technology to solve stability and
motion control challenges, and

o Cymer Cambridge’s products being successfully accepted by the semiconductor industry.

We cannot guarantee that Cymer Cambridge can achieve anticipated revenues, or that the ACX
technology will solve stability and motion control challenges ‘which is important to the future
semiconductor. Any of these risks could materially harm our business and condition and results of
operations. Further, we cannot guarantee that we can effectively develop or market the ACX technology,
or the technology of any newly acquired businesses.

We must develop and manufacture enhancements to our existing products and introduce new
products in order to continue to grow our business. We may not effectively manage our growth
and integrate these new enhancements and products, which could materially harm our business.

To continue to grow our business, our existing laser products and their process capabilities must
be enhanced, and we must develop and manufacture new products to serve other semiconductor
applications. We have entered into strategic agreements and acquired Cymer Cambridge in order to
achieve these goals. We cannot guarantee that we will be able t6 manage our growth effectively. Nor
can we guarantee that we will be able to accelerate the development of new enhancements to our
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existing products and create new products. Further, we may not be able to effectively integrate new
products and applications into our current operations. Any of these risks could materially harm our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our operations are subject to environmental and other government regulations that may expose
us to liabilities for noncompliance.

We are subject to federal, state and local regulations, such as regulations related to the
environment, land use, public utility utilization and the fire code, in connection with the storage, handling,
discharge and disposal of substances that we use in our manufacturing process and on our facilities that
we lease. We believe that our activities comply with current government regulations that are applicable
to our operations and current facilities. We may be required to purchase additional capital equipment or
other requirements for our processes to comply with these government regulations in the future if they
change. Further, these government regulations may restrict us from expanding our operations. Adopting
measures to comply with changes in the government regulations, our failure to comply with
environmental and land use regulations, or restrictions on our ability to discharge hazardous substances,
could subject us to future liability or cause our manufacturing operations to be reduced or stopped.

Cur products are subject to potential product liability claims if personal injury or death resuit.

We are exposed to significant risks for product liability claims if personal injury or death results
from the use of our products. We may experience material product liability losses in the future. We
maintain insurance against product liability claims. However, our insurance coverage may not continue
to he available on terms that we accept. This insurance coverage also may not be enough for liabilities
that are actually incurred. Further, if our products are defective, we may be required to recall or redesign
these products. A successful claim against us that exceeds our insurance coverage level, or any claim
or product recall that results in adverse publicity against us, could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

The price of cur commeon stock has fluctuated and may continue to fluctuate widely.

The price of our common stock has fluctuated in the past. The market price of our common
stock will continue to be subject to significant fluctuations in the future in response to a variety of factors,
including the risk factors contained in this report.

Various factors may significantly affect the market price of common stock, including:

the cyclical nature of the semiconductor industry,

actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operating results,

conditions and trends in the laser device and other technology industries,
announcements of innovations in technology,

new products offered by us or our competitors,

developments of patents or proprietary rights,

changes in financial estimates by securities analysts, and

general market conditions.
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In addition, the stock market has experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that have
particularly affected the market price for many high technology companies. Such fluctuations have in
some cases been unrelated to the operating performance of these companies. Severe price fluctuations
in a company’s stock have frequently been foliowed by securities litigation. We are currently defending
litigation related to our stock price. Any such litigation can result in substantial costs and a diversion of
management’s attention and resources and therefore could have a material adverse effect on Cymer's
business, financial condition and resulis of operations.
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We are currently defending class action lawsuits related to the trading of our securities, and this
litigation can result in substantial costs and diversion of management’s attention and resources,
and therefore have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

As disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements included in this report, we are
named as defendant in several stockholder class action lawsuits that were filed in September and
October, 1998 in the federal district courts of California. Some of our officers and directors are also
named as defendants. The plaintiffs represent a class of all persons who purchased our stock between
April 24, 1997 and September 26, 1997. The complaints allege claims under the federal securities laws,
and the plaintiffs claim that we made various material misrepresentations and omissions during this
period of time. The complaints do not seek a specific dollar amount for damages. The court consolidated
all of the complaints into one single action and a class representative was appointed. A consolidated
amended complaint was filed in early August, 1998. On November 5, 1899, we and the other defendants
filed a motion to dismiss this consolidated complaint for the plaintiffs’ failure to state a cause of action.
On April 1, 2000, the court granted our motion to dismiss with leave to amend the complaint by the
plaintiffs. The plaintiffs filed their second amended consolidated complaint on June 5, 2000. We then
moved to dismiss the second amended consolidated complaint on August 4, 2000. On October 1, 2001,
the court granted our motion to dismiss the second amended consolidated complaint with prejudice and
entered a judgment in favor of all defendants against ail plaintiffs. On October 30, 2001, the plaintiffs
appealed the judgment to the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals. While the appeal is still pending, the
plaintiffs have recently notified Cymer that they intend to voluntarily dismiss the appeal. Upon dismissal
of the appeal, the case will have ended and the judgment of the lower court in favor of Cymer will
become final.

To protect our company from hostile takeovers, we implemented a program authorizing shares
of preferred stock which may have rights and preferences that are superior to¢ our common
stock.

Nevada law and our articles of incorporation contain provisions that discourage a proxy contest
and provisions that make an acquisition of a substantial block of our common stock more difficult. In
addition, our board of directors is authorized to issue, without stockholder approval, shares of preferred
stock. Shares of preferred stock may have voting, conversion and other rights and preferences that may
be superior to those of the common stock and this could adversely affect the voting power or other rights
of holders of common stock. Our board can use the issuance of the preferred stock or rights to purchase
the preferred stock to discourage any unsolicited acquisition proposal.

item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Foreign Currency Risk

Cymer conducts business in several international currencies through its worldwide operations.
Due to the large volume of business Cymer manages in Japan, the Japanese operation poses the
greatest foreign currency risk. Cymer uses financial instruments, principally forward exchange
confracts, in Japan to manage its foreign currency exposures. Cymer enters into foreign currency
forward exchange contracts in order to reduce the impact of currency fluctuations related to purchases
of Cymer's inventories by Cymer Japan for resale under firm third-party sales commitments. Cymer
does not enter into foreign currency forward exchange contracts for trading purposes.

At December 31, 2001, Cymer had outstanding foreign currency forward exchange contracts to
buy US $44.4 million for 5.4 billion yen under foreign currency exchange facilities with contract rates
ranging from 117.38 yen to 130.08 yen per US dollar. These contracts expire on various expiration
dates through September 2002.
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Investment and Debt Risk

Cymer maintains an investment portfolio consisting primarily of government and corporate fixed
income securities, certificates of deposit and commercial paper. While it is Cymer’s genera!l intent to
hold such securities until maturity, Cymer will occasionally sell certain securities for cash flow purposes.
Therefore, Cymer’s investments are classified as available-for-sale and are carried on the balance sheet
at fair value. Due to the conservative nature of the investment portfolio, a sudden change in interest
rates would not have a material effect on the value of the portfolio.

In August 1997, Cymer issued $172.5 million aggregate principal amount in a private placement
of notes. These Step-Up Convertible Subordinated Notes (*Notes”) were due August 6, 2004, with
interest payable semi-annually on February 6 and August 6, commencing February 6, 1998. Interest on
the Notes was 3 %% per annum from August 6, 1997 through August 5, 2000 and is 7 V2% per annum
from August 6, 2000 to maturity or earlier redemption, representing a yield to maturity accrued at
approximately 5.47%. Since November 5, 1997, the Notes have been convertible at the option of the
holder into shares of Cymer common stock of Cymer at a conversion rate of 21.2766 shares per $1,000
principal amount of Notes, subject to adjustment under certain conditions. The Notes became
redeemable by Cymer on August 9, 2000. The Notes were unsecured and subordinated to all existing
and future senior indebtedness of Cymer. The indenture governing the Notes did not restrict the
incurrence of senior indebtedness or other indebtedness by Cymer. These Notes are recorded at face
value on the consolidated balance sheets. The fair value of such debt, based on quoted market prices at
December 31, 2001 was $153.4 million.

As of December 31, 2000 and December 31, 2001, $172.3 million and $147.3 million,
respectively, in Notes were outstanding. During the first quarter of 2000, $165,000 of the Notes were
converted into 3,510 shares of common stock. In June 2001, Cymer repurchased 23,500 of outstanding
Notes for a total repurchase price of $24.1 million, including $639,000 in accrued interest. in July 2001,
Cymer repurchased an additional 1,500 of outstanding Notes for a total repurchase price of $1.5 million,
including $53,000 in accrued interest.

The outstanding 1997 notes were called for redemption on March 25, 2002. Prior to the March
25, 2002 redemption date, holders of $109.3 million of the outstanding principal amount converted their
notes into shares of Cymer’s common stock. As a result of these conversions, 2,325,542 shares of
Cymer’'s common stock were issued to the note holders and the remaining $38 million of the outstanding
principal amount of the notes was redeemed.

In February 2002, Cymer issued $250 million in aggregate principal amount in a second private
placement of notes. The notes are unsecured and are due on February 15, 2009 with interest payable
semi-annually on February 15 and August 15 of each year at 3 2% per annum. The notes are
convertible into shares of Cymer common stock at a conversion rate of 20 shares per $1,000 principal
amount. Cymer used a portion of the net proceeds from this private placement to redeem the notes
issued in August 1997.

ltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The information required by this ltem is included in Part IV ltems 14(a){1) and (2) of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

Iltem 8. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure

None.
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PART Il)
ltem 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant.

The information regarding the identification and business experience of Cymer's directors under
the caption "Proposal 1 - Election of Directors" in Cymer's Proxy Statement for the annual meeting of
stockholders to be heid on May 23, 2002 to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within
120 days after the end of Cymer's fiscal year ended December 31, 2001, is incorporated herein by this
reference. For information regarding the identification and business experience of Cymer's executive
officers, see "Executive Officers” at the end of Item 1 in Part | of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Information concerning filing requirements applicable to Cymer's executive officers and directors under
the caption "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance" in Cymer's Proxy Statement is
incorporated herein by this reference. .

[tem 11. Executive Compensation

The information under the caption “Executive Compensation” in Cymer's Proxy Statement is
incorporated herein by reference.

lkem 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The information under the caption "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management” in Cymer's Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by this reference.

ftem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information under the caption "Certain Transactions" in Cymer's Proxy Statement is
incorporated herein by this reference.

With the exception of the information specifically incorporated by reference from Cymer's Proxy
Statement in Part lil of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, Cymer's Proxy Statement shall not be deemed
to be filed as part of this Report. Without limiting the foregoing, the information under the captions
“Report of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors,” “Report of the Compensation Committee of
the Board of Directors” and “Performance Measurement Comparison” in Cymer's Proxy Statement is not
incorporated by reference in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

PART IV

ltem 14. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K

(a) The following documents are filed as part of, or incorporated by reference into, this
Annual Report on Form 10-K:

(1) Financial Statements. The following Consolidated Financial Statements of
Cymer, Inc. and Independent Auditors’ Report are included in a separate section of this Report
beginning on page F-1:

Description ' Page Number
Independent Auditors’ Report = KPMG LLP........... F-1
Independent Auditors’ Report — Deloitte & Touche LLP...................l. F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2000 and 2001........... F-3
Consolidated Statements of Income for the Years Ended

December 31, 1999, 2000 and 2007.........coviiiriiiiiiinieeeen, F-4
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the Years ’

Ended December 31, 1999, 2000 and 2001............cooeviininnnn, F-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended

December 31, 1999, 2000 and 2001 ..o, F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements..................cccocoin, F-8
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2) Financial Statement Schedules. All financial statement schedules have been
omitted because the required information is not applicable or not present in amounts sufficient to require
submission of the schedule, or because the information required is included in the consolidated financial
statements or the notes thereto.

3) Exhibits. The exhibits listed under item 14(c) hereof are filed with, or
incorporated by reference into, this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Each management contract or
compensatory plan or arrangement is identified separately in item 14(c) hereof.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K. No reports on Form 8-K were filed by Registrant during the fourth
quarter of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001.

(c) Exhibits. The following exhibits are filed as part of, or incorporated by reference into,
this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Cymer (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Cymer's Registration Statement on Form S-1,
Reg. No. 333-08383).

3.2 Certificate of Designations of Rights, Preferences and Privileges of Series A
Participating Preferred Stock of Cymer (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 1 to Cymer’s Form 8-A, dated February 20, 1998).

3.3 Bylaws of Cymer, as amended and restated {incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 3.3 to Cymer’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2000).

4.1 Preferred Shares Rights Agreement, dated as of February 13, 1998 between
Cymer and ChasebMellon Shareholder Services, L.L.C. (now Mellon investor
Services L.L..C.) (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1 to Cymer’s Form
8-A, dated February 20, 1998).

42 Indenture, dated as of August 6, 1997, by and among Cymer and State Street
Bank and Trust Company of California, N.A., as trustee thereunder
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Cymer's Form 8-K, dated
August 1, 1997).

10.1# Form of Indemnification Agreement with Directors and Officers (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Cymer’'s Registration Statement on Form
S-1, Reg. No. 333-08383).

10.2  Standard Industrial Lease — Multi-Tenant, dated August 19, 1991, by and
between Lepercq Corporate Income Fund L.P. and Cymer (originally between
Frankris Corporation and Cymer) (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.15 to Cymer’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, Reg. No. 333-08383).

10.3  Single-Tenant Industrial Lease, dated December 19, 1996, by and between
AEW/LBA Acquisition Co. ll, LLC and Cymer (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 10.20 to Cymer's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed for the year ended
December 31, 1996).

10.4  Contract Manufacturing Agreement -- Lithography Laser, dated August 28,
1992, by and between Cymer and Seiko Instruments Inc. (the “Seiko
Agreement”) (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to Cymer's
Registration Statement on Form S-1, Reg. No. 333-08383).
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10.5#

10.6#

10.7#

10.8#

10.9#%

10.10#

10.11#

10.12#

10.13#

10.14#

10.15#%

10.16#

10.17

Addendum No. 2 to the Seiko Agreement, dated February 21, 2000
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Cymer’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1989).

1996 Stock Option Plan, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 89.1 to Cymer’'s Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration No.
333-69736).

1996 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 99.3 to Cymer’s Registration Statement on Form S-8,
Registration No. 333-69736).

1996 Director Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to
Cymer's Registration Statement on Form S-1, Reg. No. 333-08383).

Employment Agreement, dated October 1, 2000, by and between Robert P.
Akins and Cymer (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Cymer’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000).

Employment Agreement, dated November 26, 1997, by and between William A.
Angus, ill and Cymer (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to
Cymer’s Annual Report on form 10-K/A filed for the year ended December 31,
1997).

Employment Agreement, dated October 1, 2000, by and between Pascal Didier
and Cymer (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to Cymer’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000).

Employment Agreement, dated October 21, 1998, by and between Edward P.
Holtaway and Cymer (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to
Cymer’s Annual Report on form 10-K filed for the year ended December 31,
1998).

Employment Agreement, dated March 1, 2000, by and beitween Wallace
Breitman and Cymer (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to
Cymer’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999).

Employment Agreement, dated June 25, 2001, by and between Brian C. Kiene
and Cymer, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Cymer’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2001).

Description of Cymer Management Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Cymer's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 1999).

Cymer Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended and restated (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Cymer’'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended March 31, 2000).

2000 Equity Incentive Plan (formerly known as the 2000 Nonstatutory Stock
Option Plan and incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 9.4 to Cymer's
Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration No. 333-687386).

Credit Agreement, dated as of June 28, 2001, by and between Cymer, Inc. and
Wells Fargo HSBC Trade Bank (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
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(d)

10.18*

10.19#

10.20#

10.21#
10.22#

16.1

211
231

23.2

10.1 to Cymer’s Quarterly Report oan Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2001).

Patent License Agreement, dated May 14, 2001, by and among Cymer, Inc.,
Linda B. Jacob, Joseph A. Mangano, and Science Research Laboratory, Inc.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Cymer’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2001).

Patent Sublicense Agreement, dated May 14, 2001, by and beitween Science
Research Laboratory, Inc. and Cymer, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to Cymer's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2001).

Form of Stock Option Agreement used in connection with the 1996 Stock
Option Plan, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 89.2 to
Cymer's Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration No. 333-68738).
Form of Stock Option Agreement used in connection with the 2000 Equity
Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.5 to Cymer's
Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration No. 333-69736).

Reduction in Force Benefits Plan.

Executive Option and Group Health Coverage Extension Program.

Letter from Deloitte & Touche LLP to the Securities and Exchange Commission
dated April 5, 2000 {incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 16 to Cymer’s
current report on Form 8-K, dated March 31, 2000).

Subsidiaries of Registrant.

Independent Auditors’ Consent - KPMG LLP.

independent Auditors’ Consent — Deloitte & Touche LLP.

# Indicates management contract or compensatoery plan or arrangement.

*®

Confidential treatment was requested with respect to certain portions of this
exhibit. Omitted portions were filed separately with the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

Financial Statement Schedules. See item 14, paragraph (a) (2), above.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

CYMER, INC.

Dated: March 23, 2002 By: J/s/ ROBERT P. AKINS
Robert P. Akins,
Chief Executive Officer,
and Chairman of the Board

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been
signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date
indicated.

Chief Executive Officer,
[s/ ROBERT P. AKINS and Chairman of the Board
Robert P. Akins (Principal Executive Officer) March 23, 2002
Senior Vice President
[s/_NANCY J. BAKER and Chief Financial Officer
Nancy J. Baker (Principal Financial and Accounting
Officer) March 23, 2002
/s/ _RICHARD P. ABRAHAN Director March 23, 2002
Richard P. Abraham
/s/  KENNETH M. DEEMER Director March 23, 2002
Kenneth M. Deemer
/si MICHAEL R. GAULKE Director March 23, 2002
Michael R. Gaulke
s/ _WILLIAM G. OLDHAM Director March 23, 2002
William G. Oldham
/s/ __PETER J. SIMONE Director March 23, 2002
Peter J. Simone
/s/ _JON D. TOMPKINS Director March 23, 2002

Jon D. Tompkins
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors
Cymer, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Cymer, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2000 and 2001, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity
and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of
the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Cymer, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2000 and 2C01, and
the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Is/ KPMG LLP

San Diego, California
February 4, 2002, except as to
Note 16, which is as of March 25, 2002




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Cymer, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity, and cash
flows of Cymer, Inc. and subsidiaries (collectively, the "Company") for the year ended December 31, 1998.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit tc obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
Company's results of operations and its cash flows for the year ended December 31, 1999 in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
San Diego, California
January 28, 2000
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CYMER, INC.
CONSCLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share data)

December 31,

December 31,

ASSETS 2000 2001
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $79,678 $111,195
Short-term investments 117,017 82,088
Accounts receivable — net 85,569 50,056
Foreign currency forward exchange contracts 2,664 3,197
Inventories 76,887 61,784
Deferred income taxes 23,503 16,935
Income taxes receivable - 3,039
Prepaid expenses and other assets 4,571 3,308
Total current assets 389,889 332,502
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - NET 91,080 90,419
LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS 8,984 23,015
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES 6,060 12,269
GOODWILL - NET 323 9,791
INTANGIBLE ASSETS - NET - 10,633
OTHER ASSETS 5,226 4,717
TOTAL ASSETS $501,562 $483,346
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable $23,471 $15,729
Accrued and other current liabilities 67,853 51,270
income taxes payable 11,274 -
Revolving loan 8,745 7,652
Total current liabilities 111,343 74,651
CONVERTIBLE SUBORDINATED NOTES 172,335 147,335
OTHER LIABILITIES 3,175 4,437
MINORITY INTEREST 1,741 2,109
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Preferred Stock — authorized 5,000,000 shares; $.001 par value,
no shares issued or outstanding - -
Common stock — authorized 50,000,000 shares; $.001 par value,
issued and outstanding 29,496,000 and 30,848,000 shares
at December 31, 2000 and December 31, 2001, respectively 29 31
Additional paid-in capital 145,996 184,794
Treasury stock, at cost (2,000,000 common shares) (24,871) (24,871)
Unearned compensation - (3,468)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (1,691) (3,662)
Retained earnings 93,505 101,890
Total stockholders’ equity 212,968 254,814
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $501,562 $483,345
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CYMER, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
{In thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,

1999 2000 2001
REVENUES:
Product sales $220,051 $366,280 $267,003
Other 399 1,180 2,441
Total revenues 220,450 367,460 269,444
COSTS AND EXPENSES:
Cost of product sales 143,105 187,579 151,340
Research and development 34,518 45,433 ~ 58,368
Sales and marketing 16,742 20,098 19,617
General and administrative 13,101 22,510 18,980
Amortization of goodwill and intangible assets - 108 3,148
Purchased in-process research and development - - 5,050
Total costs and expenses 207.468 275,728 256,513
OPERATING INCOME 12,984 91.732 12,931
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):
Foreign currency exchange gain (loss) — net 643 (1,379) 877
Interest and other income 7,327 10,785 8,290
Interest and other expense (11,718) (10,636) (10,614)
Total other expense — net (3.748) (1.230) (1.447)
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX PROVISION
AND MINORITY INTEREST 9,236 90,502 11,484
INCOME TAX PROVISION - 26,246 2.871
MINORITY INTEREST (663) {484) (368)
INCOME BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEM AND
CUMULATIVE CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE 8,573 63,772 8.245
Extraordinary gain on debt extinguishment, net of tax - - 610
of $406,000
Cumulative change in accounting principle - - (370)
NET INCOME $8,573 $63.772 $8.485
EARNINGS PER SHARE:
Basic earnings per share:
Before extraordinary item and cumulative change in
accounting principle $0.31 $2.19 $0.27
Extraordinary gain on debt extinguishment - - 0.02
Cumulative change in accounting principle - - (0.01)
Basic earnings per share $0.31 $2.19 $0.28
Weiahted averaage common shares outstanding 27.907 29.113 30474

Diluted earnings per share:
Before extraordinary item and cumulative change in
accounting principle $0.2¢9 $2.07 $0.26

Extraordinary gain on debt extinguishment 0.02
Cumulative change in accounting principle - - (0.01)
Diluted earnings per share $0.29 $2.07 $0.27
Weighted average common and common

equivalent shares outstanding 29,640 30,758 31,108

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CYMER, INGC. )
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

{in thousands)
Year ended December 31,
1899 2000 2001
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $8,573 $63,772 $8,485
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Cumulative change in accounting principle - - 370
Extraordinary gain on debt extinguishment - - (610)
Depreciation and amortization 18,463 18,197 25,699
Amortization of unearned compensation - - 971
Minority interest 663 484 368
Purchased in-process research and development - - 5,050
Provision for deferred income taxes (2,899) 493 (386)
Loss on disposal and impairment of property and equipment ‘ 411 2,192 505
Change in assets and liabilities - net of acquisition in 2001:
Accounts receivable - net (14,445) (21,686) 35,969
Income taxes receivable - - (3,039)
Foreign currency forward exchange contracts (413) (5,259) 1,417
Inventories 636 (27,641) 15,179
Prepaid expenses and other assets 616 (1,057) 615
Accounts payable 11,880 3,059 (8,146)
Accrued and other liabilities 19,044 16,792 (16,322)
income taxes payable 4,234 5,130 (7,741)
Net cash provided by operating activities 48,772 55,476 58,384
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of property and equipment (22,195) (55,269) (20,405)
Purchases of investments (126,880) (173,044) (164,302)
Proceeds from sold or matured investments 118,228 174,548 184,759
Acquisition of Active Control eXperts, Inc., net of cash acquired - - (279)
Acquisition of patents - - (6,000)
Acquisition of minority interest - (1,104) -
Net cash used in investing activities (30,947) (54,869) (6,227)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Borrowings (payments) under revolving loan and security agreements, net 4,938 (8,146) (1,093)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 8,534 12,681 11,781
Redemption of convertible subordinated notes - - {24,930)
Dividends paid to minority shareholder of foreign subsidiary - (183) -
Payments on capital lease obligations (586) (621) (281)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 12,886 3,731 (14,523)
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS ~ (6,076) (425) (6,117)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22,635 3,913 31,517
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 53,130 75,765 79,678
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD $75,765 $79,678 $111,195
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CYMER, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS, CONTINUED
{In thousands)

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Interest paid

Income taxes paid

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NON-CASH INVESTING
AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Warrants issued in acquisition of patents
Stock and stock options issued in acquisition of Active Control eXperts, inc.
Conversion of subordinated notes to equity

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Year ended December 31,

1929 2000 2001
$6,744 $6,942 $7,778
$2,368 $17,987 $13,982

- - $4,322
- - $20,870
- $165 -




CYMER, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations - Cymer, Inc. and its wholly-owned and majority-owned subsidiaries |
(collectively, “Cymer” or the Company), is engaged primarily in the development, manufacturing and g
marketing of excimer lasers for sale to manufacturers of photolithography tools in the semiconductor
; equipment industry. Cymer sells its product to customers primarily in Japan, Asia, the Netherlands
- and the United States.

Principles of Consclidation — The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Cymer,
Inc., its wholly-owned subsidiaries - Cymer Japan, Inc. “"Cymer Japan”, Cymer Singapore Pte Ltd.
; “Cymer Singapore”, Cymer B.V. in the Netherlands “Cymer B.V.”, Cymer Southeast Asia, Inc., in
) Taiwan “Cymer SEA”, Active Control eXperts, Inc. “Cymer Cambridge”, and its majority-owned
subsidiary, Cymer Korea, Inc. “Cymer Korea”. Cymer, Inc. owns 70% of Cymer Korea. During the
first quarter of 2000, Cymer, Inc. acquired the 25% minority interest in Cymer SEA for $1,104,000.
During the first quarter of 2001, Cymer acquired 100% of Active Control eXperts, Inc., including its
technology (“ACX technology”). The purpose of this acquisition is to provide Cymer with an
opporiunity to enhance existing products and develop new products using the ACX technology.
Cymer sells its excimer lasers in Japan primarily through Cymer Japan. Cymer Korea, Cymer SEA,
Cymer Singapore and Cymer B.V. are field service offices for customers in those regions. All
significant intercompany balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

Accounting Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from those
gstimates.

Cash Equivalents - Cash equivalents consist of money market instruments, commercial paper and
cther highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less. As of
December 31, 2000 and 2001, cash equivalents amounted to $79.7 million and $111.2 million,
respectively.

investments — Cymer maintains an investment portfolio consisting primarily of government and
corporate fixed income securities, certificates of deposit and commercial paper. While it is Cymer's
general intent to hold such securities until maturity, management will occasionally seli certain
securities for cash flow purposes. Therefore, Cymer's investments are classified as available-for-
sale and are carried on the balance sheet at fair value. Due to the conservative nature of the
investment portfolic, 2 sudden change in interest rates would not have a material effect on the value
of the porifolio. The Company has established guidelines that maintain safety and liquidity. These
guidelines are periodically reviewed and modified to take advantage of trends in yields and interest
rates.

- Imventories - Inventories are carried at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. Cost includes

] material, labor and manufacturing overhead costs. The Company reviews the componenis of its
inventory on a regular basis for excess, obsolete and impaired inventory and makes appropriate
allowances and dispositions as such inventory is identified.

Property and Equipment - Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is provided
using the straight-line method over the estimated usefu! lives of the assets (generally three to five
years). The Cymer owned building is depreciated over a useful life of twenty years. Leasehold
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improvements are amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of the life of the
improvement or the remaining lease term. Lasers built for internal use are capitalized and
depreciated using the straight-line method over three years.

Goodwill - The excess of purchase price over the fair value of the net assets of entities acquired is
recorded as goodwill and amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated period of future
benefit of three to four years. In determining the useful fife of goodwill the Company considers
several factors including industry technology, competition, demand and other economic factors. The
Company assesses the recoverability of this intangible asset by determining whether the amortization
of the goodwill balance over its remaining life can be recovered through future operating cash flows
of the acquired operation. The amount of goodwill impairment, if any, is measured based on the
projected discounted future operating cash flows using a discount rate reflecting the .Company’s
average cost of funds. The assessment of the recoverability of goodwill will be impacted if estimated
future operating cash flows are not achieved.

Intangible Assels - Intangible assets consist primarily of acquired patents, acquired workforce, and
purchased technology. Intangible assets are recorded at cost and are amortized using the straight-
line method over their expected useful lives from four to eight years. The Company reviews the
carrying value and remaining useful life of intangibles for impairment whenever events or
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The amount of impairment,
if any, is measured based on the projected discounted future operating cash flows using a discount
rate reflecting the Company’s average cost of funds. The assessment of the recoverability of
intangible assets will be impacted if estimated future operating cash flows are not achieved.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assels and Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of — Long-lived
assets and certain identifiable intangibles are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of
the assets to future net cash flows (undiscounted and without interest) expected to be generated by
the asset. |If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is
measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the
assets. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less
costs to sell.

The total amount of impairment losses incurred in the years ended December 31, 2000 and 2001
were approximately $2.0 million and $510,000, respectively. The impairment loss recorded in the
year ended December 31, 2000 was primarily related to the write-off of certain tenant improvements
in the Company’s existing facilities as the Company moved to a new facility in 2000, and the write-off
of computer systems made obsolete by the Company's new ERP system which was implemented in
2000. The loss of $2.0 million was recorded in the general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated statements of income. For the year ended December 31, 2001, the impairment loss of
$510,000 included write-offs associated with tenant improvements in its San Diego facility, obsolete
software used within Cymer’s customer service and support organization and obsolete lasers used
within research and development. The loss of $510,000 was recorded in the research and
development, sales and marketing, and general and administrative expense sections, as
appropriate, on the accompanying consolidated statements of income. No such losses occurred in
1899,

Fair Value of Financial Instruments ~ The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair value of each ciass of financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate
that value:

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Accounts Receivable, Income Taxes Receivable, Accounts Payable,
and Accrued and Other Current Liabilities — The carrying amount reported in the consolidated
balance sheets for cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, income taxes receivable,
accounts payable, and accrued and other current liabilities approximates fair value because of the
short maturity of those instruments.
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Investments — Investments are carried at fair value which is based on quoted market prices for
such securities.

Foreign Currency Forward Exchange Contracts — The fair value of foreign currency forward
exchange contracts is determined using the quoted exchange rate (see “Derivative instruments”
below).

Convertible Subordinated Notes — Convertible Subordinated Notes are recorded at face value of
$172.3 million and $147.3 million at December 31, 2000 and 2001, respectively. The fair value of
such debt, based on quoted market prices at December 31, 2000 and 2001 was $168.9 million
and $153.4 million, respectively.

Revolving Loan — The carrying amount reported for the Company's revolving loan approximates
its fair value because the underlying instrument bears interest at rates comparable to current rates
offered to the Company for instruments of similar terms and risk.

Comprehensive [ncome — Comprehensive income includes net income, effective unrealized gains
and losses on foreign currency forward exchange contracts, foreign currency translation
adjustments, and unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities, which are recorded as
short-term and long-term investments in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

Revenue Recogniticn - Revenue from product sales is generally recognized at the time of shipment
unless customer agreements contain inspection, acceptance or other conditions, in which case
revenue is recognized at the time such conditicns are satisfied. Product sales include sales of
fasers, replacement parts, and product service contracts. Other revenue primarily represents
revenue earned from funded development activities and license fees. Such revenue is recognized
on a basis consistent with the performance requirement of the agreements. Payments received in
advance of performance are recorded as deferred revenue.

Warranty Expense — Cymer warrants its new laser products against defects in design, materials,
and workmanship. The warranty coverage period and terms vary by taser model. In general, the
laser system warranty coverage period ranges from 17 to 26 months after shipment. Cymer records
a provision for warranty for all products sold which is included in cost of product sales in the
consolidated statements of income. The provision is based on actual historical expenses incurred
and estimated probable future expenses related to current sales. Warranty costs incurred are
charged against the provision.

Research and Development Costs — Research and development costs are expensad in the period
incurred.

Income Taxes — Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences atiributable to differences
between the financial staiement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates
expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in
tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

Stock-Based Compensation - The Company applies the intrinsic value-based method of
accounting prescribed by Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees, and related interpretations including Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) Interpretation No. 44, Accounting for Certain Transactions involving Stock Compensation an
interpretation of APB Opinion No. 25 to account for its stock option plans. Under this method,
compensation expense is measured on the date of grant only if the then current market price of the
underlying stock exceeded the exercise price and is recorded on a sfraight-line basis over the
applicable vesting period. SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, established
accounting and disclosure requirements using a fair value-based method of accounting for stock-
based employee compensation plans. As allowed by SFAS No. 123, the Company has elected to
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continue to apply the intrinsic value-based method of accounting described above, and has adopted
the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123,

Foreign Currency Translation - The financial statements of the Company's foreign subsidiaries
where the functional currency has been determined to be the local currency are franslated into
United States dollars using current rates of exchange for assets and liabilities and rates of exchange
that approximate the rates in effect at the transaction date for revenues, expenses, gains and losses.
Gains and losses resulting from foreign currency translation are accumulated as a separate
component of consolidated stockholders’ equity as accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).
Gains and losses resulting from foreign currency transactions are included in the consolidated
statements of income.

Derivative Instruments - Cymer conducts business-in several international currencies through its
worldwide operations. Due to the large volume of business Cymer manages in Japan, the Japanese
operation poses the greatest foreign currency risk. Cymer uses financial instruments, principally
forward exchange contracts, in Japan to manage its foreign currency exposures. Cymer enters into
foreign currency forward exchange contracts in-order to reduce the impact of currency fluctuations
related to purchases of Cymer’s inventories by Cymer Japan for resale under firm third-party sales
commitments. Cymer does net enter into forward exchange contracts for trading purposes.

Under SFAS 133, as amended, derivative instruments are recognized in the balance sheet at their
fair value. Changes in fair value are recognized immediately in earnings unless the derivatives gualify
as hedges of future cash flows. For derivatives qualifying as hedges of future cash flows, the
effective portion of changes in fair value is recorded temporarily in accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss), then recognized in earnings along with the related effects of the
hedged items after the transaction occurs. Any ineffective portion of a hedge is reported in earnings
as it occurs. The criteria for hedge accounting includes an assessment of offsetting changes in the
cash flows for the risk being hedged, supporied by a demonstrated historical pattern of
effectiveness, and required documentation. Required documentation includes, but is not limited to,
the hedging relationship at inception of the hedge, the effectiveness of the hedge, the processes
used to determine fair value, and the calculation of the derivative's effectiveness and ineffectiveness.

Cymer's derivative instruments are designated as cash fiow hedging instruments. Cymer. adopted
SFAS 133 on January 1, 2001 but did not qualify for cash flow hedge accounting treatment until July
1, 2001 due to the extensive documentation and administrative requirements. Accordingly, for
contracts which Cymer entered into from January 1, 2001 to June 30, 2001, Cymer records changes
in the fair value of these foreign currency forward exchange contracts directly through earnings in
other income (expense) in the period that such changes occurred. For contracts entered intc on or
after July 1, 2001, Cymer defers effective changes in the fair value of its foreign currency forward
exchange contracts into other comprehensive income and subsequently reclassifies the effective
- changes to cost of product sales in the same period that the related sale is made to the third party.
Prior to the adoption of SFAS 133, Cymer accounted for all such gains and losses through cost of
product sales in the same period as the related sales was made to the third party.

Concentration of Credit Risk - Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Company to
concentrations of credit risk, consist principally of cash and accounts receivable.

Cash - Cymer invests its excess cash in an effort to preserve capital, provide liquidity, maintain
diversification and generate returns relative to Cymer's corporate investment policy and prevailing
.market conditions. Cymer has not experienced any material losses on its cash and investment

- accounts. At times, cash balances held in financial institutions are in.excess of federally insured
limits. The Company performs periodic evaluations of the relative credit standing of financial
institutions and limits the amount of risk by selecting financial institutions with a strong relative
credit standing. At December 31, 2000 and 2001, the Company had $79.6 million and $111
million respectively, in deposits with major financial institutions that exceeded the federally insured
limit of $100,000. ‘




Accounts receivable - The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated
losses resulting from the inability of its customers to make required payments, which resuilts in
bad debt expense. Management periodically determines the adequacy of this allowance by
continually evaluating individual customer receivables considering the customer’s financial
condition, security deposits, and current economic conditions. Credit losses to date have been
minimal.

Major Customers and Related Parties - Revenues from major customers are detailed as follows:

Year ended December 31,
1999 2000 2001
(in thousands)

Customer

Nikon $53,201 $103,551 $77,490
Canon 38,200 : 67,992 41,698
ASM Lithography 84,622 120,744 85,758

Receivables from these customers totaled $65.1 million, and $39.1 million, at December 31, 2000
and 2001, respectively.

Revenues from Japanese customers, generated primarily by Cymer Japan, accounted for 37%, 42%
and 41% of revenues for the years ended December 31, 1999, 2000, and 2001, respectively.
Revenues from a customer in the Netherlands accounted for 33%, 30% and 32% of revenues for the
years ended December 31, 1999, 2000, and 2001, respectively.

Revenues from stockholders (Nikon and Canon) totaled $91.4 million, for the year ended
December 31, 1999. There were no revenues from stockholders for the years ended December 31,
2000 and 2001.

Earnings Per Share — Basic earnings per share {"EPS") excludes dilution and is computed by
dividing net income or loss attributable to common stockholders by the weighted-average of common
shares outstanding for the period. Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that could occur if
securities or other contracts to issue common stock (convertible preferred stock, warrants to
purchase common stcck and common stock options using the treasury stock method) were
exercised or converted into common stock. Potential common shares in the diluied EPS
computation are excluded in loss periods as their effect would be anti-dilutive.

Year ended December 31,
1999 2000 2001
(in thousands)

Basic weighted average common shares

outstanding 27,907 29,113 30,474
Effect of dilutive securities:

Warrants 36 18 -

Options 1,697 1,626 634

Diluted weighted average common and
potential common shares outstanding 29,640 30,758 31,108

For the years ended December 31, 1999, 2000, and 2001, weighted average options and warrants to
purchase 168,000, 388,000 and 3,614,000 shares of common stock, respectively, were outstanding
but not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share as their effect was anti-dilutive. In
addition, for the years ended December 31, 1999, 2000, and 2001, weighted average common
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shares attributable to Convertible Subordinated Notes of 3,670,213, 3,666,704 and 3,387,396,
respectively, were not included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share as their effect was also
anti-dilutive.

Reclassifications — Certain amounts in prior year financial statements have been reclassified to
conform to current year presentation.

2. ACQUISITION

On February 13, 2001, Cymer acquired the Cambridge, Massachusetts based company Active

Control eXperts, Inc. (*ACX”) in an all-stock transaction including 689,000 common shares of Cymer

stock and 336,000 stock options. ACX is a leading developer, manufacturer and marketer of

hardware, software and firmware solutions for vibrations and nano-motion. ACX provides active
1 control solutions to original equipment manufacturers of precision manufacturing equipment where
] speed, accuracy and precision provide competitive advantage. ACX technology can be physically
embedded, creating adaptive “smart structures” to intrinsically improve the stability and precision of

nano-motion control in next-generation semiconductor capital equipment. Cymer's marketing

strength, industry applications capability and worldwide service and support infrastructure will help to
E both fully develop the market potential of ACX's technology, and accelerate its penetration into the
_ semiconductor marketplace.

- The acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. The total consideration
Z for the purchase was approximately $24.8 million. The details of the acquisition and the allocation of
o the purchase price, based upon the estimated fair values of the acquired assets and liabilities
assumed and an independent appraisal of intangible assets consist of the following:

Fair Value
{in thousands)

CONSIDERATION:
Purchase price — common stock $14,981
Liabilities assumed 2,998
Employee options assumed 5,889
Capitalized transaction costs 882
Total consideration $24,750
Tangible assets 1,529
Intangible assets:

Existing technology 640

Assembied workforce 790

In-process research and development 5,050
Total identifiable intangible assets 6,480
Goodwill - before unearned compensation 16,741
Unearned compensation 4,439
Goodwill — after unearned compensation $12,302

Amounts allocated to existing technology, assembled workforce, and goodwill are amortized on a

straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of four years. From the acquisition date through

December 31, 2001, the amortization of existing technology, assembled workforce, and goodwill

totaled approximately $3.0 million. With the adoption of SFAS No.142 on January 1, 2002, Cymer will

no longer amortize goodwill or intangibles with indefinite lives associated with the acquisition. The
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existing technology will continue to be amortized as it has a definite life. The assembled workforce will
be reclassified to goodwill as it does not meet the criteria of an identifiable intangible asset under the
provisions of SFAS No. 141.

Unearned compensation of $4.4 million related to unvested ACX options assumed by Cymer, is being
amortized to compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the four year vesting period of the
options. From the acquisition date through December 31, 2001, the amortization of unearned
compensation approximated $871,000.

The purchased in-process research and development (“IPR&D") totaling $5.1 million was expensed
upon acquisition because the application of ACX’s technology to semiconductor manufacturing was at
a stage of development that required further research and development before reaching technological
feasibility and commercial viability. In valuing the ACX IPR&D, consideration was given to key
characteristics of the products under development, as well as the technology’s life cycle, and the
projects’ stage of development. A discounted cash flow model was used to value the ACX IPR&D.
This model included key assumptions on ACX'’s revenue growth, cost of goods levels, selling, general,
and administrative (“SG&A”) expenses, research and development (“R&D”) expenses, and income tax
rates, all over a four year projection period from 2001 through 2004. Included in these assumptions
over the four year period were significant increases in revenue growth as compared to previous years
and reductions in cost of goads, SG&A expenses and R&D expenses as a percentage of these higher
projected revenues. These amounts were converted into estimated cash flows atiributable to the
technology to a present value equivalent using a 20% discount rate. The value of the ACX IPR&D
was then calculated by summing these net present value amounts over the four year projection
period, adding the tax amortization benefit, and applying a 70% percentage of completion factor for all
IPR&D products. Estimates of time to complete, analysis of technological milestones, and other
qualitative factors were considered to arrive at this percentage of completion factor.

Cymer believes that the assumptions used to value the acquired intangibles were reasonable at the
time of acquisition. No assurance can be given, however, that the underlying assumptions on
projected revenues, costs, expenses, product development costs, percentages to complete, or the
events associated with such projects, will have the same outcomes as expected and estimated within
the valuation models used. For these reasons, among others, actual results may vary from the
projected results.

The accompanying consolidated balance sheets and statements of income include the operations of
ACX from the acquisition date. From the date of acquisition through December 31, 2001, ACX had
revenues totaling $3.5 million and a net loss of $2.8 million. The impact of ACX'’s results of operations
to the consalidated results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2001 was a decrease of
$0.17 to the basic earnings per share and a decrease of $0.18 to the diluted earnings per share.

December 31,
3. BALANCE SHEET DETAILS 2000 2001
{in thousands)

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE:
Trade $80,210 $46,478
Notes and other 7,437 5,775
87,647 52,253
Less allowance for doubtful accounts and notes (2,078) (2,197)
Total $85,569 $50,056
INVENTORIES:
Raw materials $22,101 $26,294
Work-in-progress - 1 29,308 22,211
Finished goods 40,478 26,807
Allowance for excess and obsolete inventory (15,000) (13,528)
Total $76,887 $ 61,784




December 31,
2000 2001
{(in thousands)

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:

Land $9,080 $3,080
Building 27,528 27,528
Building improvements - 1,146
Furniture and equipment 63,688 71,568
Capitalized lasers 24,637 31,833
Leasehold improvements 23,418 25,932
Construction in process 3,373 1,461
151,724 168,548
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (60,644) (78,129)
Total $91,080 $90,419
ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES:
Warranty and installation $34,050 $27,908
Payroll and payroll related 14,491 6,628
interest 15,052 10,397
Other 4,260 8,337
Total $67,853 $51,270

4. INVESTMENTS
Investments consist of the following:
December 31,

2000 2001
(in thousands)

Shori-term:
Municipal bonds $14,605 $ -
Corporate bonds 32,429 48,796
Commercial paper 55,746 23,144
U.S. government agencies 14,237 2,525
Other - 8,523
Total $117,017 $82,988
Long-term:
Corporate bonds $8,984 $6,257
Commercial paper - 10,333
Other - 6,425
Total $8,984 $23,015

5. CREDIT FACILITIES

Revolving Loan Agreements ~ During 2000 and 2001, respectively, Cymer maintained certain Loan
Agreements (the “2000 Agreements” and the “2001 Agreements”) which provided for unsecured
revolving loan facilities allowing for combined borrowings of up to a maximum of $40 million in 2000
and $30 million in 2001. The 2000 Agreements expired on March 18, 2001, on which date the
balance due was paid in full.
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Under the 2001 Agreements, Cymer may borrow in U.S. dollars or Japanese yen, and interest
accrues on outstanding borrowings at LIBOR plus 1.75% on U.S. dollar-denominated borrowings and
at the yen COF rate plus 1.5% on yen-denominated borrowings. The 2001 Agreements require
Cymer to maintain compliance with certain financial statement and other covenants, including
tangible net worth, quick ratio and profitability requirements. As of December 31, 2001, Cymer was
in compliance with all such covenants. The 2001 Agreements expire on June 15, 2002.

As of December 31, 2000 and 2001, there was $8.7 million and $7.7 million outstanding at annual
interest rates of 2.55% and 1.60%, under the 2000 Agreements and 2001 Agreements, respectively.

Foreign Exchange Facilities — During 2000 and 2001, Cymer maintained foreign exchange facilities
with three different banks in the United States and Japan. See also “Foreign Exchange Contracts” in
Note 1. The foreign exchange facilities provided up to $100 million in 2000 and 2001 to be utilized
for spot and futures foreign exchange contracts for periods of up to one year. $76.9 million and $44.4
million was utilized under the foreign exchange facilities as of December 31, 2000 and 2001,
respectively. These facilities are part of the Revolving Loan Agreements discussed above and are
subject to the same covenants.

6. CONVERTIBLE SUBORDINATED NOTES

In the third quarter of 1997, Cymer issued $172.5 million aggregate principal amount in a private
placement of notes. These Step-Up Convertible Subordinated Notes (the “Notes”) due August 6,
2004 with interest payable semi-annually February 6 and August 8, commencing February 6, 1898.
Interest on the Notes is stated at 3 %% per annum from August 6, 1997 through August 5, 2000 and
at 7% per annum from August 6, 2000 to maturity or earlier redemption, representing a yield to
maturity accrued at approximately 5.47%. The Notes are convertible at the option of the holder into
shares of Common Stock of Cymer at any time on or after November 5, 1997 and prior to
redemption or maturity, at a conversion rate of 21.2766 shares per $1,000 principal amount of Notes,
subject to adjustment under certain conditions. Cymer could not redeem the Notes prior to August 9,
2000. Thereafter, Cymer can redeem the Notes from time to time, in whole or in part, at specified
redemption prices. The Notes are unsecured and subordinated to all existing and future senior
indebtedness of Cymer. The indenture governing the Notes does not restrict the incurrence of
senior indebtedness or other indebtedness by Cymer. As of December 31, 2000 and 2001, $172.3
million and $147.3 million, respectively, under the Notes was outstanding. During the first quarter of
2000, $165,000 of the Notes were converted into 3,510 shares of common stock.

On June 21, 2001, Cymer repurchased 23,500 of its convertible subordinated notes outstanding. The
total purchase price for the notes was $24.1 million, which included $23.4 million for the notes and
$639,000 in accrued interest. The purchase price per note was $997.50. Cymer recognized an
extraordinary gain, net of tax of $360,000, on this transaction in the amount of $540,000.

On July 30, 2001, Cymer repurchased an additional 1,500 of its convertible subordinated notes
outstanding. The total purchase price for the notes was $1.5 million, which included $1.4 million for
the notes and $53,000 in accrued interest. The purchase price per note was $957.50. Cymer
recognized an extraordinary gain, net of tax of $46,000, on this transaction in the amount of $70,000.

On March 25, 2002, these notes were called for redemption. Prior to the March 25, 2002 redemption
! date, holders of $109.3 miilion of the outstanding principal amount converted their notes to shares of
] Cymer’s common stock. The remaining $38 million of the outstanding principal amount of the notes
3 was redeemed (See Note 16).

7. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common Stock Warrants — During fiscal 2001, Cymer issued warrants to purchase 200,000 shares

of its common stock at a weighted average purchase price of $31.43 per share in conjunction with
the acquisition of certain patents (See Note 12). The warrants expire in May 20086.
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Stock Option and Purchase Plans - Cymer has five plans as follows:

Common Shares
Designated for

Issuance
(i) 1987 Stock Option Pian 3,000,000
(i) 1996 Stock Option Plan 7,900,000
(iii) 1996 Employee Stock Purchase Plan 800,000
(iv) 2000 Equity Incentive Plan 1,850,000
(v) ACX 1993 Stock Option Plan 336,109
Total 13,886,109

(i) 1987 Stock Option Plan (the “1987 Plan”) — The 1987 Plan provides for the grant of incentive
and nonstatutory options to purchase shares of common stock to employees and consultants at
prices that are not less than 100% (85% for nonstatutory options) of the fair market value of Cymer’s
common stock on the date the options are granted. The 1987 Plan also provides for various
restrictions regarding option terms, prices, transferability and other matters. Options issued under
the 1987 Plan expire five o ten years after the options are granted and generally vest and become
exercisable ratably over a four-year period following the date of grant. The amount of shares
issuable as of December 31, 2001 under this plan was 3,000,000, of which all have been previously
granted.

(iiy 1996 Stock Option Plan (the “1996 Stock Plan”) — The 1996 Stock Plan provides for the grant
of incentive stock options to emplovees and nonqualified stock options to employees, directors and
consultants of Cymer. The exercise price of stock options .granted under the 1996 Plan must be at
least equal to the fair market value of Cymer’s common stock on the date of grant. Options issued
under the 1996 Plan expire five to ten years after the options are granted and generally vest and
become exercisable ratably over a four-year period following the date of grant. The amount of
shares issuable under this plan as of December 31, 2001 was 7,800,000, of which 8,973,058 have
been previously granted.

(i) 1996 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP”) — The ESPP is intended to qualify under
Section 423 of the Code. Under the ESPP, eligible employees may purchase shares of common
stock from Cymer through payroll deductions of up to 10% of his or her base compensation
(excluding bonuses, overtime and sales commissions), at a price per share equal to 85% of the lower
of (i} the fair market value of Cymer's common stock as of the first day of each offering period under
the ESPP or (ii) the fair market value of the common stock at the end of the purchase period. This
plan was amended in 2001 by the shareholders to establish two year offering periods with six month
purchase periods and to increase the plan shares issuable from 500,000 to 800,000. The amount of
shares issuable under this plan as of December 31, 2001 was 800,000, of which 474,465 have been
previously granted.

(iv) 2000 Equity Incentive Plan ( the “2000 Plan” ) — On August 16, 2000, Cymer adopted the 2000
Plan under which the maximum aggregate number of shares which may be soid and issued is
500,000. Options may only be granted to employees or consultants who are neither directors nor
officers. The exercise price of the options granted under the 2000 Plan will equal the quoted market
value of the common stock at the date of grant. Options issued under the 2000 Plan expire ten years
after the options are granted and generally vest and become exercisable ratably over a four year
period following the date of grant. This plan was amended in 2001 to increase the shares issuable
from 500,000 to 1,850,000. The amount of shares issuable under this plan as of December 31, 2001
was 1,850,000, of which 1,714,522 have been previously granted.

(v) ACX 1893 Stock Option Plan — Cymer assumed the ACX Stock Option Plan upon completion of
the acquisition of ACX in February 2001. Outstanding options may be exercised solely for shares of
Cymer common stock, according to the conversion ratio established in the acquisition. The
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outstanding ACX options were converted to options to purchase 336,109 Cymer shares, at exercise

prices ranging from $2.08 to $38.71 per share. No further options will be issued under the ACX
Stock Option Plan.

In 1996, Cymer adopted a 7996 Director Option Plan (the “Director Option Plan”) whereby 200,000
shares were reserved for Board of Director option grants. There were 80,000 options issued under
the Director Option Plan in 1997. The Director Option Plan was dissolved in October 1997 by the

Board of Directors; however, 55,000 of these options remain outstanding (unexercised) as of
December 31, 2001.

Stock option transactions are summarized as follows (in thousands, except per share data):

Weighted

Mumber of Exercise Price
Sharss Per Share
Qutstanding, January 1, 1999 4,068 $14.21
Granted 2,006 $27.95
Exercised (1,089) $ 6.74
Cancelled (216) $18.95
QOutstanding, December 31, 1999 4,769 $ 21.47
Granted 2,244 $ 38.46
Exercised (974) $11.26
Cancelled (302) $ 26.68
Qutstanding, December 31, 2000 5,737 $29.56
Granted 2,601 $23.98
Assumed in acquisition of ACX 336 $10.97
Exercised (550) $17.45
Cancelled (579) $28.60
Outstanding, December 31, 2001 7,545 $27.75
Exercisable, December 31, 2001 3,124 $27.78

Cymer applies APB Opinion No. 25 and related Interpretations in accounting for its employee stock
option and stock purchase plans. Accordingly, no compensation expense has been recognized for
its stock-based compensation plan, as the options are granted at the fair market value of Cymer’s
common stock on the date of grant.

The following table summarizes the impact had compensation cost been determined based upon the

fair value at the grant date for awards under the plan consistent with the methodology
prescribed under SFAS No. 123:

Year ended December 31,

1999 2000 2001
Impact on net income ($18,246,000) ($27,251,000) {$38,198,000)
Impact on earnings per share:
Basic ($0.65) ($0.94) ($1.25)
Diluted (50.62) ($0.89) ($1.23)
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Year ended December 31,
1999 2000 2001

Estimated weighted average fair
i market value of options granted
or shares purchased using the
Black-Scholes pricing model:
Options $21.71 $27.86 $14.36
ESPP $5.71 $15.40 $11.01
Weighted average assumptions:
Dividend yield None None None
Volatility rate 80% 87% 84%
Risk free interest rates 4.56% - 6.27% 5.10% - 6.81% 3.48% - 5.05%
Assumed forfeiture rate 5% 5% 5%
Expected life:
Options 7 years 7 years 6 years
ESPP .5 years Syears .5 years

The following table summarizes information as of December 34, 2001 concerning currently
outstanding and exercisable options:

M Options Cutstanding Options Exercisable
" Weighted Average Weighted Weighted
Range of Number Remaining Average Number Average
-] Exercise Prices Outstanding Contractual Life Exercise Price Exercisable Exercise Price
: {years)
$2.08 - $19.34 1,347,055 7.55 $15.33 428,713 $15.26
$19.75 - $22.56 1,677,836 6.51 $21.31 1,283,778 $21.39
$22.94 - $27.00 1,525,836 9.38 $25.91 111,520 $25.11
$27.38 - $37.00 1,724,622 8.23 $34.88 632,454 $35.29
$37.06 - $57.00 1,259,695 8.17 $41.84 662,833 $41.30
$60.00 - $60.00 10,000 8.16 $60.00 4,375 $60.00
$2.08 - $60.00 7,545,044 7.95 $27.75 3,123,673 $27.78

Common Shares Reserved — As of December 31, 2001, Cymer had reserved 1,388,000 shares of
common stock for issuance under its stock option and purchase plans.

Stockholder Rights Plan - On February 13, 1998, Cymer's Board of Directors adopted a
Stockholder Rights Plan. Under the terms of the Plan, rights were distributed as a dividend at a rate
of one preferred share purchase right on each outstanding share of Cymer's common stock held by
stockholders of record as of the close of business on March 2, 1998. All additional shares of common
stock issued prior to February 13, 2008, the expiration date for all rights, received the dividend at the
same rate. The exercise price for each one-thousandth of a preferred share issuabie pursuant to the
exercise of a right was $100.00, subject to adjustment under the Plan. Such rights are exercisable
only upon certain change of ownership events as defined in the Plan. The rights are designed to
assure that all Cymer stockholders receive fair and equal treatment in the event of any proposed
takeover of Cymer and to guard against partial tender offers and other abusive tactics to gain control
of Cymer without paying all stockholders the fair value of their shares, including a control premium.
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8. INCOME TAXES
The components of the provision for income taxes are summarized as follows:

Year ended December 31,
1999 2000 2001
(in thousands)

Current income taxes:

Federal $4,961 $19,962 $1,560 ;
State 829 4,457 (3,432)
Foreign 2,404 7,808 3,017

Total 8,194 32,227 1,145

Deferred income taxes:

Federal (5,979) (3,071) (118)

State (2,199) (2,810) 1,844

Foreign (16) - .
Total (8,194) (5,981) 1,726
Income tax provision $ - $26,246 $2,871

The income tax provision is different from that which would be obtained by applying the statutory
Federal income tax rate (35%) to income before income tax expense. The items causing this
difference for the period are as follows:

E Year ended December 31,
J 1999 2000 2001
] (in thousands)

Provision at statutory rate ) $3,233 $31,739 $4,020
Foreign provision in excess of federal

statutory rate 932 (1,434) 412
State income taxes, net of federal benefit (891) 1,006 (1,032)
Foreign sales corporation benefit, net of

federal tax (709) (4,469) (787)
Federal tax credits (2,389) (1,150) (2,509)
Tax exempt interest, net of disallowed expenses (66) (52) (38)
Non-deductible amortization of goodwill and

in-process research and development - - 2,869
Other (110) _ 606 (64)
Provision at effective tax rate $ - $26,246 $2,871
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax
purposes._ Significant components of Cymer’s net deferred tax assets are as follows:

December 31,
2000 2001

(in thousands)
Reserves and accruals not currently deductible $23,780 $18,460
Accrued Japanese enterprise tax 752 732
State taxes (2,544) (1,901)
Tax credit carryforwards 3,829 4,433
Difference between book and tax basis of

inventory and property and eguipment 1,725 2,280

Tax effect of foreign currency translation adjustments 901 2,359
Other 1,120 2,841
Net deferred tax assets 29,563 29,204
Less current portion (23,503) (16,935)
Net non-current deferred tax assets $6,060 $12,269

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely
than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Based upon the level of
historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income, management believes it is more
likely than not the Company will realize the deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2001, and
accordingly, has not provided a valuation allowance.

At December 31, 2001, the Company had federal and state tax loss carryforwards of $7.4 million and
$7.6 million, respectively, which begin to expire in 2013 and 2003, respectively. At December 31,
2001, the Company had federal and state tax credit carryforwards of $2.3 million and $2.5 million,
respectively, which begin to expire in 2013 and 2009, respectively.

It is the Company's intention to reinvest undistributed earnings of its foreign subsidiaries and thereby
indefinitely postpone their remittance. Accordingly, no provision has been made for foreign
withholding taxes or United States income taxes which may become payable if undistributed earnings
of foreign subsidiaries were paid as dividends to the Company.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Leases - Cymer leases certain facilities under non-cancelable operating leases. The lease terms are
through January 1, 2010 and provide for certain rent abatements and minimum annual increases and
options to extend the terms. Cymer also leases certain other facilities and equipment under capital
and short-term operating lease agreements. The capital leases expire on various dates through 2003.

Rent expense under operating ieases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the life of the related
leases and totaled approximately $4,752,000, $4,788,000 and $5,052,000 for the years ended
December 31, 1999, 2000 and 2001, respectively.

The net book value of assets under capital leases at December 31, 2000 and 2001 was approximately
$606,000 and $153,000, net of accumulated amortization of approximately $2,459,000 and $157,000,
respectively. The decrease from 2000 to 2001 for assets under capital leases is due to the
completion and buyout of several of Cymer’s furniture leases during 2001.
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Total future minimum lease commitments under operating and capital leases are as follows (in
thousands):

Year ending December 31, Operating Capital
2002 $4,445 $75
2003 3,604 54
2004 3,513 45
2005 3,506 -
2006 3,477 -
Thereafter 9,499 -
Total $28,043 174
Less amount representing interest

2)
Present value of minimum lease payments 172
Less current portion (73)
Long term obligations under capital leases $99

Patent License Agreement - Cymer has a patent license agreement for a non-exclusive worldwide
license to certain patented laser technology. Under the terms of the agreement, Cymer is required to
pay royalties ranging from 0.25% to 5.0% of gross sales and leases as defined depending on the total
amounts attained subject to an annual maximum of $100,000. Royalty fees totaled $100,000 in each
of the years ended December 31, 1998, 2000 and 2001.

Employee Savings Plan - Cymer has a 401(k) plan that allows participating employees to contribute
a percentage of their salary, subject to annual limits. The Plan is available tc substantially all full-time
United States employees. Effective January 1, 1897 through December 31, 1899, Cymer maiched
100% of each eligible employee’s contributions, up to $500 per yvear. The Plan was amended
effective January 1, 2000 to include a matching contribution of up to 4% of each participating
employee’s contribution, not to exceed $4,000 per year. Under the Plan, Cymer contributed
$199,000, $1,496,000, and $1,504,000 for the years ended December 31, 1999, 2000, and 2001,
respectively.

Executive Deferred Compensation Plan — Cymer has an executive deferred compensation plan for
certain officers and key executives. Beginning in 2001, the Company used corporate owned life
insurance to finance the plan. Compensation expense under this plan totaled $8,000 and $684,000
for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 2001, respectively. The Company’s liability for deferred
compensation totaled $251,000 and $1,086,000 as of December 31, 2000 and December 31, 2001,
respectively, and is included in other liabilities. The cash surrender value of the life insurance policies
totaled $415,000 as of December 31, 2001 and is included in other assets.

Executive Option and Group Health Coverage Extension Program — Cymer has an executive
option and health coverage extension program for eligible executives who meet certain minimum
service and age requirements. This program is designed to provide extended benefits to eligible
executives who retire and cease to serve the Company on a full-time basis. Under the terms of the
plan, the executive acts as a consuitant to the Company for a term of four years. In return for these
services, the program allows the executive to continue vesting in his or her stock options after the
retirement separation date. The program also provides the executives with specified health insurance
continuation benefits. As of December 31, 2001, there were no executives active in this program.

Retirement Plan - Cymer Japan has a retirement benefit plan for all Cymer Japan empioyees and
Japanese directors. The plan consists of a multi-employer retirement plan covering all employees and
life insurance policies covering all employees and Japanese directors. The multi-employer retirement
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11.

plan was established under the Small and Medium-Size Enterprise Retirement Benefits Cooperative
Law. Cymer Japan also has a Retirement Allowance and Pension Plan. Expense under these plans
totaled $298,000, $500,000, and $492,000 for the years ended December 31, 1999, 2000 and 2001,
respectively.

Contingency - Cymer's Japanese manufacturing partner and at least one of Cymer's Japanese
customers have been notified that Cymer’s laser systems in Japan may infringe certain Japanese
patents held by another Japanese company. Cymer has agreed io indemnify its Japanese
manufacturing partner and its customers against patent infringement claims under certain
circumstances. Cymer believes, based upon the advice of qualified Japanese counsel, that Cymer’s
products do not infringe any valid claim of the asserted patents or that it is entitled to prior user rights
in Japan.

CLASS ACTION LAWSUITS

Cymer had been named as a defendant in severat putative shareholder class action lawsuits which
were filed in September and October, 1998 in the U.S. Disirict Court for the Southern District of
California. Certain executive officers and directors of Cymer are also named as defendanis. The
plaintiffs purport to represent a class of all persons who purchased Cymer’s common stock between
April 24, 1997 and September 26, 1997. The complaints allege claims under the federal securities
laws. The plaintiffs allege that Cymer and the other defendants made various material
misrepresentations and omissions during the Class Period. The compiaints do not specify the amount
of damages sought. The complaints had been consolidated into a single action and a class
representative had been appointed by the court. A consolidated amended complaint was filed in early
August, 1989. On November 5, 1999, Cymer and the other defendants filed a motion to dismiss the
consolidated amended complaint for failure to state a cause of action. On April 1, 2000, the court
granted defendants’ motion to dismiss with leave to amend the complaint by the plaintiffs. The
plaintiffs filed their second amended consolidated complaint on June 5, 2000. Cymer moved to
dismiss the amended complaint on August 4, 2000. On October 1, 2001, the court granted Cymer’s
motion to dismiss the second and consolidated complaint with prejudice and entered judgment in
favor of all defendants and against plaintiffs. On October 30, 2001, the plaintiffs appealed the
judgment in the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals. While the appeal is still pending, the plaintiffs have
recently notified Cymer that they intend to voluntarily dismiss the appeal. Upon dismissal of the
appeal, the case will have ended and the judgment of the lower court in favor of Cymer will become
final.

FOREIGN CURRENCY FORWARD EXCHANGE CONTRACTS

Cymer uses financial instruments, principally foreign currency forward exchange contracts, in Japan to
manage its foreign currency exposures. Cymer enters into foreign currency forward exchange
contracts in order to reduce the impact of currency fluctuations related to purchases of Cymer's
inventories by Cymer Japan for resale under firm third-party sales commitments.

Cymer adopted SFAS 133 on January 1, 2001. SFAS 133 requires that all derivative instruments be
recorded on the balance sheet at fair value. Gains or losses resulting from changes in the values of
those derivatives are accounted for depending upon the use of the derivative and whether it qualifies
for hedge accounting. Prior to the adoption of SFAS 133, net gains or losses were recorded on the
date the lasers were received by Cymer Japan (the transaction date) and were included in the cost of
product sales in the consolidated statements of income at the same time that the related sales to the
third parties were consummated.

Cymer did not qualify for hedge accounting treatment until July 1, 2001. Accordingly, Cymer recorded
all unrealized gains and losses on derivative instruments through earnings for the six months ended
June 30, 2001, in accordance with SFAS 133. Effective July 1, 2001, for contracts entered into on or
after July 1, 2001, from the date of contract inception through the date of the anticipated hedged

F-23




12.

13.

transaction, unrealized effective gains and losses are recorded as OCl. The net amount of unrealized
effective gain or loss on the date the laser is received by Cymer Japan is reclassified to cost of sales
on the date the laser is sold to the third party. Cymer’s derivative instruments are designated as cash
flow hedging instruments and are deemed to be 100% effective. Upon adoption of SFAS 133 on
January 1, 2001, Cymer recorded a loss to cumulative change in accounting principle of $370,000 and
a gain of $2.4 milion to accumulated other comprehensive income per SFAS 133 transition
guidelines. Of the $2.4 million accumulated other comprehensive income, $2.2 million and $0.2
million was recorded to cost of product sales during the quarter ended March 31, 2001 and the quarter
ended June 30, 2001, respectively, in accordance with SFAS 133 transition guidelines.

At December 31, 2001, Cymer had outstanding foreign currency forward exchange contracts to buy
US $44.4 million for 5.4 billion yen under foreign currency exchange facilities with contract rates
ranging from 117.38 yen to 130.08 yen per US dollar. These contracts expire on various expiration
dates through September 2002, and accordingly, the balance of the unrealized changes in fair values
of the derivative instruments of $2.3 million at December 31, 2001 is expected to be recognized in
earnings in fiscal 2002. Cymer recognized a charge to cost of product sales of $2,891,000 for the
year ended December 31, 18989, and net gains through cost of product sales from the foreign currency
exchange contracts of $3,156,000 and $2,320,000 for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 2001,
respectively.

PATENT LICENSE AGREEMENT

On May 14, 2001, Cymer acquired certain patents for a total consideration of $10.3 million, which
included a $6.0 million cash payment and the issuance of 200,000 warrants valued at $4.3 million.
The warrants were valued on the date of issuance using the Black Scholes pricing method. The total
value of these patents will be amortized over eight years which represents the shortest remaining life
of the patents purchased under the agreement. The amortization of these patents is included in cost
of product sales on the accompanying statements of income.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Collaborative Arrangement - Cymer has a collaborative arrangement with a Japanese company that
was also a stockholder of Cymer. The arrangement, entered into in August 1992, includes a (i) stock
purchase agreement, (ii) research and development agreement, (iii) product license agreement, and
(iv) contract manufacturing agreement. The general provisions of these agreements are as follows:

Stock Purchase Agreement - The stockholder purchased 470,590 shares of Cymer's Series D
Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock at $4.25 per share with net proceeds to Cymer of
$1,909,000. Such stock was converted to common stock in 1996 and was sold in 2000.

Product License Agreement - Cymer granted to the stockholder the exclusive right in Japan and
the non-exclusive right outside Japan to manufacture and sell one of Cymer's products and
subsequent enhancements thereto. Cymer also granted the stockholder the right of first refusal
to license and fund the development of new technologies not developed with funding from other
parties. In exchange for these rights, Cymer received up-front license fees and was entitled to
royalties of 5% on related product sales through September 1999, after which the royalty rate is
subject to renegotiation. The license agreement also provides that product sales between
Cymer and the stockholder will be at a 15% discount from the respective companies' list price.
The agreement terminates in August 2012. There was no activity under this agreement in
1999, 2000 and 2001.

Contract Manufacturing Agreement - The stockholder has agreed to manufacture for Cymer
another of its products. Cymer is required to purchase a specified percentage of its total annual
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product, as defined, from the stockholder. The agreement expires in August 2003, and will
automatically renew for two-year terms unless one year’s notice is given by either party.

Cymer made $10.8 million, $10.6 million and $3.1 miiion in purchases under this agreement in
1998, 2000 and 2001, respectively.

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Cymer designs, manufactures and sells excimer laser systems, replacement parts, and support
services for use in photolithography systems used in the manufacture of semiconductors with critical
features sizes. In accordance with SFAS No. 131, Cymer currently considers its business to consist
of one reportable operating segment.

Geographic Information

Presented below is information regarding sales, income from operations, and identifiable assets,
classified by operations located in the United States, Japan, Korea, Taiwan, Singapore and the
Netherlands. Cymer sells its excimer lasers in Japan through Cymer Japan. intercompany sales to
the subsidiaries are primarily priced between 90% to 95% of the price of products sold to outside
customers. Ali significant intercompany balances are eliminated in consolidation. The majority of
consolidated costs and expenses are incurred in the United States and are reflected in the operating
loss from the United States operations.

Year ended December 31,

1999 2000 2001
Sales from:
United States $125,297 $173,979 $124,325
Japan 81,445 156,064 111,407
Korea, Taiwan, Singapore,
and Netherlands 13,708 37,417 33,712
Total $220,450 $367,460 $269,444
Operating income (loss) :
B United States ($30,958) ($8,774) ($58,141)
Japan 36,068 81,606 57,545
g Korea, Taiwan, Singapore,
and Netherlands 7.874 18,900 13,5627
Total $12,984 $91,732 $12,931
Identifiable assets:
United States $333,902 $405,388 $419,500
Japan 54,529 59,676 32,805
Korea, Taiwan, Singapore,
and Netherlands 16,394 36,498 31,041
Total $404,825 $501,562 $483,346
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15. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except for per share data)

Year ended December 31, 2000

1st 2nd 3rd 4th
Revenues $80,617 $86,251 $98,427 $102,166
Operating income $15,330 $22,506 $24 584 $29,312
Net income $10,174 $15,275 $18,089 $20,233
Basic earnings per share $0.35 $0.53 $0.62 $0.69
Diluted earnings per share $0.33 $0.50 $0.58 $0.68
Year ended December 31, 2001
ist 2nd 3rd 4th
Revenues $91,197 $70,411 $53,035 $54,801
Operating income (loss) $11,111 $5,413 ($2,278) ($1,315)
1 Net income (loss) $8,299 $4,835 ($2,782) ($1,867)
Basic earnings (loss) per share $0.28 $0.16 ($0.09) ($0.06)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share $0.27 $0.15 ($0.09) ($0.06)

16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On February 15, 2002, Cymer closed on a placement of $250 million principal amount of unsecured

3 2% Convertible Subordinated Notes due February 15, 2009. Interest on the notes is payable on

February 15 and August 15 of each year, commencing August 15, 2002. The notes are convertible

into shares of Cymer's stock at a conversion rate of 20 shares per $1,000 principal amount of notes.

Cymer may redeem the notes on or after February 20, 2005, or earlier if the price of its common
E stock reaches certain levels. The notes are subordinated to Cymer's existing and future senior
] indebtedness and effectively subordinated to all indebtedness and other liabilities of Cymer’s
] subsidiaries.

A portion of the net proceeds of the private placement were used to redeem the Company’s
outstanding 3¥2% / 7% Step-Up Convertible Subordinated Notes due August 2004. The Step-Up
Convertible Subordinated notes were called for redemption on March 25, 2002. Prior to the March
25, 2002 redemption date, holders of $109.3 million of the outstanding principal amount converted
their notes into shares of Cymer's common stock. As a result of these conversions, 2,325,542
shares of Cymer's common stock were issued to the note holders and the remaining $38 million of
the outstanding principal amount of the notes was redeemed. The redemption price was 104.111%
of the principal amount of the notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date.

Cymer intends to use the remaining net proceeds of the private placement for general corporate
purposes including working capital.
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Exhibit 23.1

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' CONSENT

The Board of Directors
Cymer, Inc.:

We consent to incorporation by reference in the registration statements (No. 333-16559, No. 333-67491,
No. 333-48242, No. 333-69736, and No. 333-58554) on Form S-8 and in the registration statement
(No. 333-39101) on Form S-3 of Cymer, Inc. of our report dated February 2, 2002, except as to Note 16,
which is as of March 25, 2002, relating to the consolidated balance shests of Cymer, Inc. and subsidiaries
as of December 31, 2000 and 2001, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’
equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended December 31, 2001, which
report appears in the December 31, 2001 Annual Report on Form 10-K of Cymer, Inc.

/s/ KPMG LLP

San Diego, California
March 25, 2002




Exhibit 23.2

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ CONSENT
We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos. 333-16559, 333-67491,
333-48242, 333-69736 and 333-58554 on Form S-8 and Registration Statement No. 333-39101 on Form

S-3 of our report dated January 28, 2000, appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Cymer, Inc. for
the year ended December 31, 2001.

fs/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

San Diego, California

March 26, 2002
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